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1st Virtual 37th Annual General 
Membership Assembly

September 12, 2021, 1:00 pm - 5:00pm
Theme: 

“Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a Sustainable Rural Electrification”

PART I. Registration       
PART II. PROGRAM PROPER

Doxology ..................................................................

Philippine National Anthem .....................................

ISELCO II March ......................................................

Words of Welcome ...................................................

Introduction of the Guest Speaker ..........................

Message of the Guest
of Honor and keynote Speaker ..............................

Intermission Number  .............................................

Special Messages to MCOs ...................................

Induction of the Provincial........................................
      WIDE MCOPE

Special Message to MCOs .....................................

Awarding of Outstanding BAPAs ...........................

Special Message to MCOs ....................................

Awarding of Prompt Payors ...................................

Closing Remarks ...................................................

8:00 AM - 12:00 NN
1:00 PM - 3:00 PM

Power Voice

Power Voice

Lights and Sounds

DIR. WALFRIDO G. BINAG
Board Chairman

DAVID SOLOMON M. 
SIQUIAN
General Manager

USEC. JOSEPH B. ENCABO
Chairperson Cooperative 
Development Authority

ISELCO II

SPECIAL GUESTS

DIR. CARLITO M. UY
Board Vice Chairman

SPECIAL GUESTS

SPECIAL GUESTS

DIR. GAUDENCIO A. REYES, JR.
Board Secretary

MARY CLAIRE N. VALENCIA & MARK ANTHONY S. BULUSAN
Masters of Ceremony
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PART III. BUSINESS PROPER

A. CALL TO ORDER ...............................................................

B. Determination & Certification ..........................................
    of Quorum & Reading of Minutes 
    of the previous AGMA 

C. Presentation of the Financial ...........................................
     Report

D. Presentation of AGENDA ..................................................

PART IV. OPEN FORUM ...........................................................

PART V. ADJOURNMENT

   R A F F L E     D R A W R A F F L E     D R A W          R A F F L E     D R A W

3:00 PM - 4:00 PM

DIR. WALFRIDO G. BINAG
Board Chairman

DIR. GAUDENCIO A. REYES, JR.
Board Secretary

DIR. MICHAEL B. PAGUIRIGAN
Board Treasurer

DAVID SOLOMON M. SIQUIAN
General Manager

4:30 PM - 5:00 PM
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MALACAÑAN PALACE
MANILA

My warmest greetings to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as it holds its 
37th Annual General Membership Assembly.

The commitment and dedication of ISELCO II in providing local communities and 
industries in Isabela with reliable and affordable electricity attests to the importance of 
electric cooperatives in the country. I thus acknowledge the significant contributions 
of your organization in advancing our collective efforts to grow and develop the energy 
sector.

May this occasion result in more technological innovations that will foster economic 
growth in your service area. It is my hope that you will further implement programs 
and initiatives that weill enable our people to live more comfortable lives. This 
administration looks forward to a more dynamic and empowered partnership with 
you as we build a more stable and prosperous future for all Filipinos. 

I wish everyone a productive and meaningful gathering.

RODRIGO ROA DUTERTE 

THE PRESIDENT OF THE PHILIPPINES
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MALACAÑAN PALACE
MANILA

Congratulations to the officers and members of Isabela II Electric Cooperative on your 
37th Annual General Assembly!

For over 44 years, you have been a constant presence in the lives of the people of 
Isabela, and a partner in the region’s development. Electrification is more than ability 
to bring light to a household. It advances a modern way of life. Electricity preserves 
food, gives access to vital information, and lceeps communities safe. It connects people 
to one another.

As you come together this year, remember the values that bind you in fellowship Social 
responsibility, passion for excellence, and absolute honesty guided by a
vision to be of service to the nation. I wish you many more years of success. 
Congratulations and may you have a meaningful assembly.

LENI ROBREDO
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Republic of the Philippines
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

 On behalf of the Department of Energy (DOE), may I extend the agency’s warmest 
regards to the Board of Directors, Officers, and Member-Consumers of the Isabela II Electric 
Cooperative (ISELCO II) on the occasion of your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly 
(AGMA).
 
 With Isabela being the second largest province in the country, it is with much pride 
that the DOE commends your remarkable efforts in providing sufficient and quality electrical 
services on such a large scale.

 ISELCO II has always been a dependable key partner of the energy family and I hope 
your cooperative continues to be the epitome of excellence in the energy sector.

 It is common knowledge that the demand for power intensifies most especially in 
times of natural disasters.

 Laudable is how ISELCO II continues its electrification operations to the people of 
Isabela daily, managing to keep up with both your technical and institutional responsibilities to 
the communities you service.

 Your outputs such as the rehabilitation of distribution lines damaged by Typhoon 
Lawin with the Task Force Kapatid and your on-going information and education campaign 
only shows your commitment to the Duterte Administration’s vision of national growth and 
equitable development.

 We are confident ISELCO II will remain steadfast and focused never ceasing to further 
improve your operations while minimizing systems loss and maximizing collection efficiency. 
I wish success to your cooperative as you go on with your projects for this year including the 
construction of sub transition lines and transformers.

 May this AGMA be a perfect opportunity to discuss future plans for the betterment of 
households in your franchise area especially to those underserved.

 Never cease to strive for excellence by “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and 
Innovation for a Sustainable Rural Electrification,” always keeping in mind your goals as a 
dependable power distribution utility.

 Rest assured that the DOE is with ISELCO II every step of the way as you continue to 
deliver reliable, sufficient and uninterrupted electricity.

 Thank you and Mabuhay ang ISELCO II!

 ALFONSO G. CUSI
 Secretary
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Republic of the Philippines
ENERGY REGULATORY COMMISSION

 The Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) warmly extends its felicitations to 
the officials and member-consumer-owners (MCOs) of Isabela II Electric Cooperative 
(ISELCO II) as you hold your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly (AGMA).

 Your theme, “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a 
Sustainable Rural Electrification” manifests ISELCO II’s strategy in contributing to 
the achievement of total rural electrification. The holding of the AGMA is one way 
of empowering your MCO’s by keeping them informed of ISELCO II’s plans and 
programs to further enhance its operations and ensure the stability of electricity in the 
province of Isabela. The AGMA is an opportune time to highlight consumers welfare 
as among ISELCO II’s top priority.

 Keeping an open line of communication and encouraging awareness does not 
only empower your MCO’s but also to fosters a culture of transparency within your 
organization. Take advantage of the event to discuss and explore possibilities on how 
you can improve on your rates, such as finding the least cost energy mix and lowering 
distribution system losses.

 Rest assured that the ERC will always support your endeavors towards ensuring 
the reliability of your electric distribution systems and reasonable rates for the benefit 
of your consumers. The ERC is not just your regulator but also an enabler that drives 
the necessary changes and provides time – sensitive solutions that contributes to 
nation – building.

 More power ISELCO II!

AGNES VST DEVANADERA
Chairperson and CEO 
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Republic of the Philippines
NATIONAL ELECTRIFICATION ADMINISTRATION

My warmest greetings to the Member-Consumer-Owners (MCOs), Board of Directors, 
Officials and Employees of Isabela II Elctric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you celebrate 
your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly. 

With almost five dacades, NEA and its partner Electric Cooperatives (ECs) have 
developed a successful and strong cooperation in the pursuit of the shared goals of the 
Rural Electrification Program (REP). This alliance has been tested through the years 
and is expected to proactively respond to the call of the present administration for 
inclusive growth and sustainable development.

Today, as you celebrate this momentous event, I wish to congratulate ISELCO II for 
its valuable contributions in the successful implementation of the REP. The availability 
of reliable, efficient and cheap electric service in all 523 barangays serving 154,858 
consumer connections paved the way for the transformation of communities in the 
province of Isabela into more productive districts that enable people to improve their 
way of life.

But we have bigger responsibilities to carry as we go along. Since incessant challenges 
emerge in the electricity industry, ISELCO II must take the lead and initiate programs 
that will not only uplift the lives of the people, but also empower them to become deeply 
involved in the affairs of their cooperative. Specifically, ISELCO II must take aggressive 
steps in accelerating the energization of the remaining 11% of potential connections 
in its coverage area. It is heartening to note that this year’s theme, “Highlighting MCO 
Empowerment and Innovation for a Sustainable Rural Electrification”, manifests a 
clear alignment of our aspirations.

The holding of your AGMA is the timely chance to put together your efforts with your 
MCOs in order to protect the gains and legacies of the REP. with their support, the 
mission for a progressive and sustainable development will be realized and ultimately 
rebound to the betterment of the life of the rural folks. NEA is one with you in all your 
endeavors. 

I wish ISELCO II all the best. Mabuhay!

EDGARDO R. MASONGSONG
Administrator
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Republic of the Philippines
PHILIPPINE RURAL ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVES ASSOCIATION

Greetings of Peace and Happiness!

Warmest congratulations on your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly! I am 
very pleased to be one with you in celebrating another year in the service to our people 
and to our cause.
Under the leadership of General Manager David Solomon M. Siquian and Board 
President Walfrido G. Binag, ISELCO II was able to go beyond in service for our 
Member- Consumer-Owners (MCOs). To all ISELCO II Board of Directors, the 
management team, employees, stakeholders, and especially the MCOs, thank you for 
your unending support and efforts to the Rural Electrification Program.
As you celebrate your AGMA, I want to express my utmost gratitude to all who are 
continuously believing and supporting our advocacies and movement towards Rural 
Electrification. May your commitment in fulfilling our goals serve as an inspiration 
and motivation for others to reach higher.

While in the midst of a pandemic, allow me to challenge you to set the bar higher in 
terms of EC services, efficiency and collaborative efforts with other ECs and MCOs. 
May your achievements and success cement your resolve to bring our advocacies at the 
forefront for the benefit of the communities that we serve. Rest assured that PHILRECA, 
as your association, will always be in your service and will fight in solidarity with you 
towards rural development.

Mabuhay and Power On!

           ATTY. JANEENE DEPAY-COLINGAN
            Executive Director/ General Manager
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Warm cooperative greetings and congratulations to the officers, staff and members of 
Isabela II Electric Cooperative on yor 37th Annual General Assembly.

 The Cooperative Development Authority (CDA) is very grateful to have you 
as one of the reliable partners of the authority in fulfilling its commitment to promote 
social justice and equity as well as in liberating those in the marginalized sectors into 
the mainstream of development process through cooperativism.

 Cooperativism has now come of age. And as you conquer another year of 
success with the theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a 
Sustainable Rural Electrification”, I am confident that you will be able to achieve more 
than what you have gained in the past years. Through the synergy and group strength 
of all stakeholders, I believe that your vision is within reach.

 Subsequently, I also encourage you to constantly look for possibilities and 
soar above the challenges to sustain the momentum of unfolding possibilities that will 
complement the programs of the government in transforming Filipino lives for the 
better.

 On the part of the CDA, we are steadfast in advancing cooperativism, which 
DNA is members – owned (no one shall be left behind), value – based and principles 
driven (not for profits but for service) and sustainable (social inclusion, ecological 
sustainability and good governance). 

 Together, let us work hand in hand and be a standout team to empower the 
path to free those in dark recesses of their thoughts and to be connected to the Core 
of the core of all beings – the Unseen, the Love and the Light called God – all for His 
greater glory!

       (SGD) ORLANDO R. RAVANERA
            Chairman

Republic of the Philippines
COOPERATIVE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
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Brightest greetings to the Warriors of Light of ISELCO II!

I would like to extend my warmest greetings to the General Manager David Solomon 
M. Siquian, Board President Walfrido G. Binag, the management team, employees, 
stakeholders, and to the member-consumer-owners of Isabela II Electric Cooperative 
for the celebration of your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly with the 
theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for Sustainable Rural 
Electrification.”

With your 37 years of existence and energizing even the most remote areas, you 
have provided light to our Kababayans and initiated progress in your communities. 
Your decades of effort and service are reflected in the continuous development of 
the barangays within your franchise area. With this, I am truly grateful for your hard 
work and perseverance in helping our member-consumer-owners in Isabela to have a 
brighter future.

May you continue your remarkable efforts and unparalleled service for more years 
as we strive to attain our shared goal of sustainable development through total rural 
electrification.

As your PHILRECA Representative, I am honored to serve and represent exemplary 
electric cooperatives like you. Rest assured that PHILRECA, together with the Power 
Bloc, is always ready to help and support your endeavors as you improve the lives of 
our member-consumer-owners in Isabela.

Again, congratulations, ISELCO II on your 37th AGMA. May you always hold to heart: 
UNITED WE STAND, WE STAND UNITED!

      (SGD) PRESLEY  C. DE JESUS 
                             Representative,PHILRECA Party-list

Republic of the Philippines

House of Representatives
Quezon City, Metro Manila
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Republic of the Philippines

House of Representatives
Quezon City, Metro Manila

Mula sa representasyon ng Ikalawang Distrito ng Lalawigan ng Isabela, ako po ay 
nagagalak at lubos na bumabati sa Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) sa 
inyong taunang pagdaraos ng ika-37 General Membership Assembly.

Kaagapay ng panahon ang ating kooperatiba sa sector ng enerhiya na tumutulong sa 
bawat Isabelino sa mga pangangailangan nito sa kuryente sa araw-araw. Kasama sa ika 
uunlad at ikagaganda ng ating local na ekonomiya ang pagkakaroon ng maaasahang 
pamamahala sa sector ng enerhiya na nagbibigay ng tulong sa mga pampublikong 
ahensya ng pamahalaan, pribadong negosyo at malalayong pamayanan.

Maraming hamon pa ang hinaharap natin sa pagpapailaw ng bawat tahanan at 
pagpapagulong ng mga makinaryang pang-industriya. Sa patuloy na pagkakaisa ng 
pamahalaan at ng mamamayan ng Distrito 2, matagumpay nating mapapailawan ang 
lahat ng ating mga sitio at barangay.

Muli po, ang aking pagbati sa inyong lahat sa pagdaraos ng okasyon na ito na 
nagpapatunay din ng aking pagsuporta sa mga gawain at adhikain na nakabubuti at 
ikauunlad sa pangkalahatang estado ng sekto ng enerhiya ng bansa.

Mabuhay po ang lahat ng kasapi at miyembro ng ISELCO II!

ED. CHRISTOPHER S. GO
Representative, 2nd District of Isabela

Vice Chairman, Committee on Appropriation
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Republic of the Philippines

House of Representatives
Quezon City, Metro Manila

I am delighted to extend my warm felicitations to the Isabela Electric Cooperative II 
on the occasion of its 37th Annual General Membership Assembly. 

Your theme: ‘Highlighting MCO empowerment and Innovation for a sustainable 
Rural Electrification’ is very timely and responsive to the need of our constituents 
especially at this point in time where our localities addresses its ever increasing power 
requirements and comforting assurance that there will be reliable electric power in 
the province to turn the wheels of commerce and industry and to light the thousands 
households in the communities.

Moreover, Power is noteworthy an important requirement in many parts of the 
countryside. It is a critical factor in your present efforts to maintain economic stability 
and advance industrialization and development. The enormity of the task lies ahead of 
you and the responsibility that had been entrusted in your hands must be continuously 
realized.

With this context, I am rest assured for you to exert all efforts to accomplish the vision 
of our national government and served the best interest of our people. I look forward 
for better strategies on how you attain ideals and goals forward the attainment of 
maximum progress.

Finally, I join you in our aspiration to be energy-sufficient as a means to attain the 
goals of our nation,

Congratulations.

       
             (SGD.) FAUSTINO MICHAEL T. DY III.,
                      Member, House of Representative
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Republic of the Philippines

House of Representatives
Quezon City, Metro Manila

 
I extend my warmest felicitations to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO 
II) as theyu hold their 37th Annual General Membership Assembly with the 
theme “Highlighting, MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a Sustainable Rural 
Electrifiacation”. 

 Sustainable rural electrification is vital in bringing to the greater number of 
our grassroots communities the blessings of electricity. That local communities are 
made integral partners to charting directions for innovation in rural electrification 
strengthens not only the capabilities for the responsiveness of our electric cooperatives 
to the needs of our grassroots communities, but widens the arena for exploring locar 
partnerships toward initiatives that can make electric power readily available, sufficient 
and affordable to all households.

 I hope that your General Assembly will be a dynamic, open and informed 
dialogue that will help you find better ways of addressing the needs of members as 
well as consolidate your forces towards making ISELCO II an authentic partner of our 
grassroots communities in advancing local development that can provide our fellow 
Isabelinos a better quality of life.

 I wish you every success in your endeavours.

ANTONIO T. ALBANO
Member, House of Representative
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

PROVINCE OF ISABELA
-oOo-

Office of the Governor
This near four decades of continued service and patronage to ISELCO II had brought 
unprecedented outcomes that inured to your electric cooperative to be one of the 
most successful in the region and probably the entire country. So much has been 
accomplished and yet as development constantly moves forward, the pursuit becomes 
interminable and we all have to live the challenges and strive to keep up the pace.

 To meet this task, we subdue adversity and as electricity providers you should 
meet all expectations and must empower all the members who are also your consumers 
and being a cooperative is also the owners. It is vital to this charge that the MCOs are 
made aware of their responsibilities and obligations. To do this, the need to educate, 
organize and prepare them to their environment in all matters affecting their interest 
must always be a top priority. 

 My warm greetings to all the member consumers and stakeholders of Isabela II 
Electric Cooperative on the event of your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly, 
Though this purposeful gathering create a sustainable objective that will address the 
concern of the entire cooperative keeping in your midst the value of unison and 
perseverance for the benefit of all and sustainability of our province’s energy resources.

(SGD.) RODOLFO T. ALBANO III
Governor

Province of Isabela
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

PROVINCE OF ISABELA
-oOo-

Office of the Vice Governor
My kindest regards to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you hold your 
37th Annual General Assembly. Also, I would like to express my sincerest gratitude for 
your sustainable contribution to the continuous progress of the Province. 

I believe in your resiliency and capability to make extensive contributions to our society; 
you are, and you will always be an indispensable part of our Province’s movement 
to achieve economic growth. Together, with our commitment to serve our people, 
let us pursue new initiatives and innovations to improve our communities while 
maintaining and preserving our tradition of providing efficient, reliable, affordable, 
environmentally sustainable electrification and excellent service to every isabelenos\s.

Let integrity, quality and excellence guide our pursuits towards a better, progressive 
and steadfast Isabela.

God bless and more power!

(SGD.) FAUSTINO “BOJIE” G. DY III
Vice Governor
Province of Isabela
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF AURORA
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
 I wish to congratulate the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) officials 
and member – consumers on the occasion of its 37th Annual General Membership 
Assembly with a theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a 
Sustainable Rural Electrification.” My gratitude to the strong leadership of ISELCO II for 
your commited stewardship in providing one of the most indispensable commodities 
in every household and for keeping the cooperative alive and strong through the storm 
seasons. 

 It is my hope and desire that the officials and member-consumers will 
continually strive for the improvement of the cooperative thru active cooperation and 
to strengthen the committed passion and determination in the realization of bringing 
out the best electric services to its member – consumers. A united effort within the 
cooperative will certainly bear fruits of prosperity. 

On behalf of the whole officialdom and the people of Aurora I reiterate my 
Congratulations to one and all.

MORE POWER AND MABUHAY!!!

JOSEPH CHRISTIAN G. UY
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF BENITO SOLIVEN
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
 
 Above all, we praise the Lord for giving this added opportunity to the Isabela II 
Electric Cooperative to hold its 37th Annual General Membership Assembly (AGMA).

 Being a stakeholder, I want to extend my profound admiration to the whole 
family of ISELCO II headed by General Manager DAVID SOLOMON M. SIQUIAN for 
another breakthrough of a very grateful and productive achievements in electrifying 
almost 100% of all the service area covered by ISELCO II especially the far-flung 
barangays in Benito Soliven, Isabela. 

 As a resident, I highly appreciate the very satisfactory performances of 
the management and staff of ISELCO II in rendering 24/7 services just to ensure 
continuous flow of electricity for the member-consumers even during unfavorable 
weather condition.

 God bless at Mabuhay kayong lahat mga taga ISELCO II!

(SGD.) ROBERTO T. LUNGAN
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF BURGOS
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My Warmest Greetings to Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you hold your 
37th Annual General Membership Assembly with the theme: “Highlighting MCO 
Empowerment and Innovation for a sustainable Rural Electrification.”

Your cooperative’s initiatives motivate us in government to further our endeavors 
towards sustainable development. Amidst the pandemic, may you continue to be an 
agent of progress by providing quality and affordable services, and by setting higher 
standards for the energy industry.

I hope that you will remain steadfast as we light more communities and energize our 
nation. May this gathering serve as a ground to discuss opportunities to advance your 
operations for the benefit of your member-consumers.

At the end of the day, may we all be beacons of hope as we move our nation further 
forward.

(SGD.) KERVIN FRANCIS G. UY
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF CABAGAN
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
I would like to convey my sincere appreciation and congratulations to all the personnel 
of ISELCO II for their astounding performance in the delivery of their services despite 
the extraordinary challenges brought by the Covid-19 pandemic.

ISELCO II has been a reliable partner of the Local Government Unit of Cabagan in the 
implementation of its streetlighting and electrification projects in the Municipality of 
Cabagan. The whole stretch of streetlights installed from Tumaini-Cabagan to Cabagan-
San Pablo boundary and the streetlights in Riverside and Eastern Barangays beam like 
dazzling pearls at night. In many occasions when these projects were realized, we have 
seen smiles and excitement from the faces of young and old Cabagueños especially 
those residing in the poorest and far-flung areas. We are grateful for your remarkable 
support as we incessantly aim to provide sustainable electrification in the Municipality 
of cabagan.

May we continue to work together as we move towards providing affordable and clean 
energy to every Cabagueño home.

May God bless all your endeavors!

(SGD.) ATTY. CHRISTOPHER A. MAMAUAG
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF DELFIN ALBANO
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
At the outset, allow me and my office to extend to the officialdom and membership of the Isabela II 
Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) the warm greetings and felicitations of the Municipality of Delfin 
Albano, whose people and sovereign constituency is hereto represented with this missive.

Congratulations and our prayers on the holding of your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly, 
which I note is to be undertaken virtually via on-line platforms. While membership assemblies are a 
necessary facet of any organization or association, or cooperative as in this case, your holding the same 
virtually is commendable for reasons of the yet increasing rate of infection of the virus that causes 
COVID-19. With the prevailing Community Quarantine Protocols and the subsisting health pandemic, 
the holding of your assembly on-line is in keeping with the duly-prescribed safety and health guidelines. 
Your insistence to abide to these guidelines while still ensuring that the constitutionally mandated 
assembly is done with shows a leadership that is responsive and people-focused.

Your 37th Annual GMA is proof of the vitality and vibrancy the Cooperative is endowed with. This is 
made possible in part by the able leadership of the management of the Cooperative and in whole by the 
active support and consensus of its general membership.

As in the case of our Municipality, our local government draws power and authority from among our 
people. We likewise, to a greater degree, draw inspiration and drive from among them, especially in the 
midst of the trying times presented by the prevailing health malady. So too the Cooperative, of which we 
are all members, draws authority and inspiration from all who have a stake in its existence and its very 
being. The membership of the Cooperative stands as a valuable resource, never indispensable and always 
significant.

Your theme, “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a Sustainable Rural Electrification,” 
captures the essence of the Cooperative – which exists to service the people it represents and which makes 
up the whole of its systems and soul as an organization.

We cannot overemphasize nor underestimate the role each of the membership plays in the life-cycle of the 
cooperative. with this in mind, I thank most profoundly the Cooperative for listening to the people, for 
putting them and their interests above anything else in the whole scheme of the Cooperative.

Once again, congratulations and may God preserve you all committed to the service of our people.

(SGD.) ARNOLD EDWARD P. CO
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

CITY OF ILAGAN
ISO 9001:2015

Office of the City Mayor
The massive digitalization and technological advancements of our civilization make it 
difficult to imagine life without electricity. It has indeed, become one of the necessities 
indispensable to have a quality life. Most importantly, electrification is synonymous 
with development because it is one of the factors considered by prospective investors 
since most of the inputs for any business operation depends on electricity.

Yet, it is a sad reality that there are still areas in our country, let alone in our province, 
that still doesn’t have electricity. Nonetheless, the Isabela II Electric Cooperative has 
been relentless in its efforts to provide electricity especially in the suburbs in line with 
this year’s theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for Sustainable 
Rural Electrification.”

For this reason, the entire officialdom of the City Government of Ilagan and the 170,00 
people it serves commends the efficient management and service of the ISELCO II. 
Your commitment and cooperation in various activities of the City Government of 
Ilagan are most noteworthy, as you go far and beyond the services you provide to 
perform your social obligation.

On this occasion, we would like to congratulate the management of ISELCO II 
and extend our gratitude for being an active partner of the City Government in the 
attainment of its aspiration to become a livable city. We hope for your usual support to 
the undertakings of the City Government in the service to our constituents.

(SGD.)JOSEMARIE L. DIAZ, DMD, MBA
City Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF GAMU
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My warmest greeting to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative as you held your 37th 
Annual General Assembly.

This event is a vital opportunity for your cooperative to become a more transformative 
force in the lives of your members and consumers. As the whole society work together 
to realize lasting progress, may the cooperative and its consumers remain unwavering 
partners in the improvement of lives and empowerment of the whole organization. 

Mabuhay Isabela II Electric Cooperative!

NESTOR MALASIG UY
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF MALLIG
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
 To the Management, Staff and Member – Consumer – Owners of the Isabela 
II Electric Cooperative
 In behalf of the constituents of the municipality of Mallig, I would like to 
extend my warmest congratulations to ISELCO II family on the celebration of your 
37th Annual General Membership Assembly with a theme, “Highlighting MCO 
Empowerment and Innovation for a sustainable Rural Electrification”.
 The Local Government Unit of Mallig is in support with ISELCO II especially 
with your theme in this 37th Annual General Assembly, we all know that inefficient 
and irresponsible use of electricity is taking its toll on our natural resources, so in 
behalf of the people of Mallig I would like to commend the efforts of ISELCO Ii to 
innovate a sustainable rural electrification. Rest assured that we will be your partner 
in the commitment to make the future much brighter for Isabelenos by ensuring them 
continued safe, adequate and reliable electricity service.

 In behalf of the people of Mallig I would like to express my gratitude to your 
invaluable contributions and continue to be our partner in the upliftment of the 
quality of life of Milliguenos. Let us always work together as we move Mallig to greater 
heights. May this gathering serve as a venue to discuss opportunities on how to mold 
member – consumers as responsible energy users.

 Thank God and God Bless!

ENGR. JOSE P. CALDERON
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF NAGUILIAN
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My warmest greetings to Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you hold your 
37th VIRTUAL Annual General Membership Assembly.

This year’s theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation for a Sustainable 
Rural Electrification” captures the strength of your collective will and vision in 
continuing your commitment of empowering your members. Indeed, the dedication 
of your cooperative in fostering innovation and the attainment of your aspiration is 
truly commendable.

It is my wish therefore that your assembly becomes successful in promoting stronger 
camaraderie among your members. May it give way to the fruitful discussion of crucial 
issues that could help achieve your Mission and Vision.

May God continue to bless all your endeavors and please keep safe always!

(SGD.) Engr. JUAN R. CAPUCHINO, MPA
                                                                  Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF PALANAN
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
 In behalf of my constituents, our warmest felicitations to the Officers and 
Member -Consumers-Owners of the Isabela II Electric Cooperative on the occasion of 
holding its   Annual General Membership Assembly on September 12, 2021. 

 With this year’s theme “Sustaining the strategic Partnership of the NEA-ECS-
MCO’s Towards Rural Development and Nation Building”, is an indication of your 
conti nued mission to pursue the advancement in the distribution of electricity and 
services for the benefit of your Member -Consumer-Owners especially in the remote 
areas of your area of operation. 

 Your thirty five long years of valuable services in distributing electric power in 
your area of operation has greatly contributed to the improvement of quality of lives as 
well as the economic development of the stakeholders. 

 May you have a successful and meaningful 2020 annual general membership 
assembly.

 God Bless and More Power!

ELIZABETH B. OCHOA
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF QUEZON
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
Greetings of peace and goodwill!

 It is an honor to convey my warmest greetings on the 37th Annual 
General Membership Assembly of Isabela II Electric Cooperative with the theme, 
“Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation and Innovation for Sustainable 
Rural Electrification”.

 The Isabela II Electric Cooperative, a public power utility provider, plays a 
vital role in the provision of electricity to its general clientele in our district paving the 
way for rendition of better basic services and continuous economic growth which in 
turn lead to improved living standard of the people. The strategic partnership of the 
NEA – ECS – MCOs is indeed a contributory factor to the sustained realistic rural 
development in general.

 My wish for success to the forthcoming 37th Annual General Assembly as 
well as my prayers for a more meaningful and productive strategic partnership with all 
stake holders to achieve sustainable development within the coverage area of ISELCO 
II.

JIMMY S. GAMAZON, JR.
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF QUIRINO
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My warmest greetings to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as it holds 
its 37th Annual General Membership Assembly. I commend this cooperative for its 
outstanding accomplishments and great initiatives over the years.

ISELCO II has been a part of every home in our municipality because it makes our life 
easy, comfortable and convenient. I really admire this cooperative for its continued 
efforts in finding innovative solutions to power our rural communities. It has been 
providing life – changing opportunities by lighting our homes and energizing our 
nation. 

This assembly is indeed a great venue to inform the members about the cooperative’s 
initiatives to raise the quality of its service, to evaluate its performance and to discuss 
updates about its operations and management. Together, we will continue to empower 
each other and seek ways towards a sustainable rural electrification.

Again, my heartfelt congratulations ti ISELCO II for always making a difference.

Thank you.

EDWARD D. JUAN
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF ROXAS
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
Mabuhay ISELCO II!

Surely, your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly (AGMA) – a joyous, 
enriching and electrifying milestone, will “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and 
Innovation for a Sustainable Rural Electrication.” 

Today we commend ISELCO II for sustaining your pro-people development initiatives 
in the power industry. The electricity that you generate is a reliable vessel of comfort 
and good life to many.

Likewise we appreciate ISELCO II’s vibrant and robust programs to upgrade its 
facilities and services – putting importance on the promotion of the general welfare.

Radiant hope for better lives springs from your aggressive and ceaseless illumination 
of homes. 

As we join the 37th AGMA with immense joy and pride, let us always stand united 
in thought and action to make ISELCO II a more highly trustable and more effective 
power Coop using modern or state of the art technology.

Congratulations everyone for attending this momentous occasion! Kudos to all 
member – consumers for your inspirited and unwavering support to our Coop!

May this event be fruitful, meaningful and refreshing. We wish too, that this assembly 
energize us to work doubly hard to electrifying every nook and cranny of our beloved 
town and province.

A blessed and peaceful 37th AGMA to one and all!

JONATHAN JOSE C. CALDERON
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN MANUEL
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My warmest greetings to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you hold 
your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly.

 It is evident that electricity plays a pivotal role in nation building. With it, 
various sources of livelihood are created, delivery of services is improved which leads 
to the betterment of the lives of people. Life seems hard without electricity; hence, 
there is no doubt that electricity is an essential input to all economic activities, and 
even in people’s subsistence.

 Our country forges ahead with  positive momentum. As you hold the 37th 
Annual General Membership Assembly, we anticipate an expansion of horizons for 
our people, especially for those willing to maximize the opportunities made possible 
by ISELCO II. Let our fellowmen gear up for the rapid pace of our era, as we enable 
them to harvest the yields of reform. 

 It is with high hope that this assembly will ensure that your client-stakeholders 
will have better, more stable, and more efficient service, that you may reach your 
collective goals and contribute to our nation’s resurgence at this juncture in our history. 

 I wish you a successful and productive Assembly.

MANUEL FAUSTINO U. DY
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN MARIANO
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
 The whole nation is still fighting the dreaded COVID19 which hit most parts 
of the world last year, leaving behind a distraught economy, and worst some lives 
were lost because of the virus. But life must go on as they say. Our leaders are firm in 
implementing health protocols as a way to mitigate the spread of the virus alongside 
plans to reopen the economy in order to aide the people in surviving this worldwide 
pandemic. And as long as we continue being vigilant and compliant, we have greater 
chances of surviving this crisis.

 There’s a lot that we can do if we are united towards achieving a common goal. 
Your institution has gone a long way as you have now provided electrification even up 
to the farthest and remotest barangays in your area of responsibility. Our economy 
should have displayed great progress if not only with the occurrence of the pandemic. 
And just any other service provider, you also encounter problems in the course of 
delivering your services to the people, one which is the uncontrollable power shortage 
and some other issues.

 I congratulate the leadership of GM David Solomon M. Siquian for rising 
up to the challenges that your institution has to face. May you continue fulfilling the 
vision and mission of ISELCO DOS in the next years to come. A toast to another year 
of excellence!

 More power and stay safe!

(SGD.) EDGAR TALOSIG GO
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF SANTA MARIA
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
Electricity has been an indispensable component of our lives. Now, more than ever, we 
see the value of Electrification, as we all grapple with the effects of the current health 
crisis. In these trying times, households should be powered, business must continue to 
run, and activities must not come to a stagnancy or discontinuity.

 The Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) has been delivering affordable 
and abundant electricity to the municipality of Sta. Maria. Throughout the years, 
your electric cooperative has changed in many ways to meet the growing demands 
for electricity. You have maximized technology, controlled costs, and increased 
convenience. You have responsively addressed the electric needs of the SMI community, 
especially during calamities and difficult times.

 It is on the foregoing reasons that I express on behalf of the whole Local 
Government Unit (LGU) my heartfelt gratitude to the entirety of the ISELCO II for 
the relentless service you efficiently provide for the community. Your heroic efforts 
deserve recognition.

 As we move forward, let us strive to better the services we render to our 
constituents. Let us not rest on our laurels, as there are many ways to improve from 
our previous best.

 It is our fervent hope that you remain safe in the pursuit of delivering 
incumbent mandate to provide efficient electric services for the people of our beloved 
municipality.

 Thank you for all the hard work!

HILARIO G. PAGAUITAN
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN PABLO
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
The entire officialdom of the Local Government Unit of San Pablo, Isabela is very much 
delighted to extend its warmest gratitude to the ISELCO family for your continued 
commitment and high-quality service to us being your goal which is “Geared towards 
energy sustainability.”

You serve as vibrant light and inspiration to us as we perceive your success in your 
endeavor, as we also work together without easing to carry out our task more than 
what is expected from us. Thus, to give joy and shed light to our people, and to lift up 
the name of our Almighty Creator in Heaven.

CONGRATULATIONS and MABUHAY!

ANTONIO N. MIRO, JR.
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF SANTO TOMAS
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor

  My warmest congratulations to the officials and employees of Issabela 
II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) on your 37th Annual General Membership 
Assembly meeting with a theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and Innovation 
for a sustainable Rural Electrification.”

 A fitting occasion to recognize the solidarity of the Board of Directors, 
Management and Staff and Employees who contributed a lot for the success of your 
cooperative. what started as a small organization has now become a major industry 
player and a catalyst for change and development nowadays. We too, consider that our 
consumers in every rook are the “lifeblood of ISELCO II.

 Our consumers have enjoyed the convenience and happiness of life in every 
home with the provision of electricity in every barangay of District I. The well-lit 
barangays allowed people in the countryside to go from one place to the other without 
fear anymore. It has further resulted to less crime rate since well-illuminated places 
became a deterrent to performing illegal acts.

 This is the very essence of ISELCO II, achieving rural development through 
sustained strategic partnerships.

 Mabuhay ang ISELCO II!

ANTONIO M. TALAUE
Municipal Mayor
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Republic of the Philippines
Province of Isabela

MUNICIPALITY OF TUMAUINI
-oOo-

Office of the Municipal Mayor
My warmest greetings to the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) as you 
celebrate your 37th Annual General Membership Assembly.

Your celebration theme: “Highlighting MCO Empowerment and innovation for a 
Sustainable Rural Electrification” truly signifies the harmonious relationships and 
dedication of the employees towards sustaining a favorable environment and provision 
of reliable and efficient electricity services that the MCOs deserve.

Nineteen years ago, upon assumption to office, only 45.25% of total households are 
served by electricity from the 42 barangays of the municipality. But due to the firm 
commitment and capable leadership of the ISELCO II Board of Directors, officials 
and employees in extending electric service even in geographically isolated and 
disadvantaged area (GIDA), all the 46 barangays of Tumauini are already energized 
and about 96% of households are served with electricity including some of its remotest 
puroks and sitios.

The present leadership extends its commendations for the success of your electrification 
programs and worthy accomplishments that rippled transformative impact to our 
beloved consumers in this municipality. I wish you the best in all your endeavors and 
may our Divine Providence grant another year ahead of your institutional journey.

Congratulations on your anniversary!

Sincerely,

ARNOLD S. BAUTISTA
Municipal Mayor
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We are immensely grateful as we conduct our 1st virtual and 37th Annual General 
Membership Assembly (AGMA) with the theme “Highlighting MCO Empowerment 
and Innovation for sustainable Rural Electrification” in spite of the current pandemic 
situation.

Despite the aforementioned difficult circumstances, ISELCO II continues to undertake 
long-lasting programs and projects for the development of the communities it 
serve. We will pursue to serve during our prime years and deliver sustainable Rural 
Electrification in the remote areas so that our Member-Consumer-Owners (MCOs) 
may experience social and economic growth.  The Board of Directors, together 
with our General Manager David Solomon M. Siquian are beyond honoured as we 
move forward in the attainment of our future endeavours; through innovations and 
advancement of the Cooperative for our ever supportive MCOs.  

This year’s AGMA, ISELCO II takes pride in recognizing the incessant patronage of 
our MCOs to our electrification program. The MCOs are the pillar of the Cooperative 
and with the outstanding effort of the Board of Directors, Management, staff and 
personnel; our vision to be the best electric cooperative in the country is feasible and 
beyond reach.

Finally, we would also like to commend the utmost hard work of our ISELCO II 
Management, staff and employees who continuously perform their outstanding 
service that keep the Cooperative running and for making this event possible. They 
committed their time and put their best effort to make the AGMA a success.   
On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to extend our heartfelt gratitude 
to all our MCOs for the continuous cooperation and support in all the Cooperative’s 
projects/programs then and now.

Mabuhay ang ISELCO II! Mabuhay ang MCOs!
Thank you and Stay safe!

WALFRIDO G. BINAG
Board Chairman

Isabela II Electric Cooperative 
Government Center, Alibagu, City of Ilagan, Isabela
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On this most auspicious occasion of our 1st Virtual and 37th ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEMBERSHIP ASSEMBLY (AGMA), the entire Board of Directors and Management of 
the Isabela II Electric Cooperative (ISELCO II) wish to extend our sincerest greetings and 
humble felicitation to all our most valued ISELCO II Member-Consumer-Owners (MCOs) 
throughout our service coverage area.

Dakayo dagiti banuar ken kapategan itatta nga aldaw  a panangrambak tayo ti panagkasangay 
ti kooperatiba tayo.  Today belongs to you — to all ISELCO II members and consuming 
public who are also our stock-owners or shareholders in the capital stock of the cooperative.

Once again, we have come together, not only to know more about latest developments and 
information about our electric cooperative from the reports of your co-op Board Directors 
and Management, but more importantly, to renew our ties with one another and to celebrate 
the UNITY and COOPERATION that we have forged throughout these years.

Bonded by a common purpose, we have built and solidified a foundation on which the 
ISELCO II institution now stands and will persist.  And YOU, our  MCOs, have served as the 
bedrock and living spirit of ISELCO II.  It is FOR YOU that ISELCO II continually strives for 
excellence and reliability in its services and operations.

As legitimate stakeholders, you have empowered and vested yourselves with the right to get 
involved and to directly participate in the affairs of your cooperative, to assure that your 
investments are well handled and protected.  This is the essence of MCO Empowerment that 
is expressed as the theme of our Annual Membership Assembly for this year.

Through our own initiatives and our collective efforts, we have created opportunities for 
ourselves and strengthened the cooperative 
organization of ISELCO II to serve and cater to our energy needs.  May this annual meeting, 
therefore, continue to inspire and motivate us into more development work in the service of 
our people.

WE CAN DO MORE, FOR AS LONG AS WE STAY TOGETHER!!!
MABUHAY ang ISELCO II!  MABUHAY ang kooperatiba sa Pilipinas!!

DAVID SOLOMON M. SIQUIAN
ISELCO II General Manager / PHILFECO Chairman

Isabela II Electric Cooperative 
Government Center, Alibagu, City of Ilagan, Isabela



GM’S REPORT

GM’S REPORT

    Gentlemen:

  I have the honor to submit the accomplishments of the 
    Isabela II Electric Cooperative for the year ended        
      December 2020 and present the workforce and awardees: 

 1. Institutional  
    2. Financial 
       3. Technical 
         4. Corporate Planning
             5. Service Awards
               6. 2019 & 2020 Outstanding 
                       Barangay Power Associations
     7. The ISELCO II Officials 
         8. The Management Staff
            9. Coop Employees

         Yours truly,

                   DAVID SOLOMON M. SIQUIAN
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INSTITUTIONAL

A. ADMINISTRATIVE DIVISION

      1.  Personnel Status as of December 30, 2020.

DEPARTMENT/BRANCH REGULAR PROBATIONARY CONTRACTUAL TOTAL
OFFICE OF THE GM 17 2 1 20       

Corplan Department 8 8         
Internal Audit Dept. 10 10       

Finance Services Dept. 31 1 32       
Instituional Services Dept. 33 2 35       
Technical Services Dept. 72 5 77       

Ilagan Branch Office 30 30       
Naguilian Branch Office 24 24       
Tumauini Branch Office 25 2 27       
Cabagan Branch Office 19 19       

Roxas Branch Office 27 2 29       
Aurora Branch Office 28 1 29       

Marana Sub Office 14 14       
San Antonio Sub Office 10 10       

Lullutan Sub Office 7 7         
Gamu Sub Office 11 1 12       

Benito Soliven Sub Office 16 1 17       
Delfin Albano Sub Office 10 10       

Sto. Tomas Sub Office 9 9         
Sta. Maria Sub Office 10 10       

Quirino Sub Office 9 9         
Mallig Sub Office 14 14       
Burgos Sub Office 10 10       

T O T A L 444 14 4 462     
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In-House Seminars & Trainings

INSTITUTIONAL

Name of Trainings No. of Participants Date Agency

1 Annual Strategic Planning Seminar-Workshop 14 January 26, 2020 PHILFECO

2

Seminar-Workshop on Revised Procurement 
Guidelines and and Simplified Bidding Procedures for 
Electric Cooperatives 30 February 5, 2020 NEA

3
Meter Reading, Billing, Collection and Disconnection 
(MRBCD) Seminar-Workshop 54 February 11. 2020 NEA

4
Consultative Conference on Addressing MCOs' 
Complaints on EC Services via Zoom 1 July 16, 2020 NEA

5
Training Sessions on DIS and Hosting Capacity Analysis 
for Net-Metering Program - Webinar 3 July 28, 2020 DOE

6 Webinar on Creative Design 3 July 24, 2020 PHILRECA

7
Harnessing One's Potential for Movement Building 
During Pandemic Times 1 August 7, 2020 PHILRECA

8 Intensive Safety and Health Training Course 2 September  3-4 and 7-8, 2020 PHILRECA
9 Basic Safety Training for Line Workers 5 September 21-24, 2020 NEA
10 Basics of EPIRA 2 September 28-29, 2020 PHILRECA

External Seminars and Trainings

2. Employees’ Welfare Programs
2.1 Employee Capacitation

* PROCUREMENT GUIDELINES

* MRBC TRAINING
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INSTITUTIONAL

2.2. Good Governance

* BRANCH MEETING

* FIRST MONDAY CEREMONY

* PERFORMANCE EVALUATION PROGRAM * POLICY ORIENTATION 

* POLICY FORMULATION & AMMENDMENTS

Policy No. Policy Title Date approved & implemented

001 S. 2019

POLICY ADOPTING FLEXIBLE TIME CONTAINED IN SEC 6 OF 
R.A.8972 ALSO KNOWN AS "THE SOLO PARENTS" WELFARE ACT 
OF 2000 23-Jan-19

002 s. 2019 POLICY ON PROMOTION 23-Jan-19
003 S. 2019 OVERTIME, amending Policy No. 29, S. 2013 23-Jan-19
004 S. 2019 POLICY ON BILL INTEGRATION 23-Jan-19

005 S. 2020
PROCEDURES ON CONFLICT MANAGEMENT AND 
CONCILIATION MEDIATION PROCEEDINGS 20-Apr-20

006 s. 2020
CONTINUING EDUCATION PROGRAM FOR OFFICERS AND 
EMPLOYEES 20-Apr-20

007 s. 2020 ADOPTION OF A CAPITAL SHARE BUILD-UP PROGRAM 20-Apr-20

008 s. 2020
POLICY ON THE DISTRIBUTION OF THE INTEREST SHARE 
CAPITAL AND PATRONAGE REFUND 20-Apr-20

009 s. 2020 POLICY ON THE ISSUANCE OF DIVIDENDS 20-Apr-20
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INSTITUTIONAL

2.3. Health & Safety Programs

* POLICY ORIENTATION 

* COOPERATIVE DRILLS (Earthquake & Fire)

* COVID-19 Prevention Activities 

* IGUARD SYSTEM



42

42
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

INSTITUTIONAL INSTITUTIONAL

2.4. Acknowledgement and/or Recognition Programs

* LINEMEN APPRECIATION DAY

* RECOGNITION CEREMONY OF YOUNG ACHIEVERS

3. Corporate Social Responsibility
3.1 Blood Letting Program

3.2 Clean & Green Activitiy
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INSTITUTIONAL

2.4. Acknowledgement and/or Recognition Programs

3.3 Tree Planting Activity

3.4 Relief Operation

4. Corporate Image Building
4.1 Inauguration & Blessing Ceremony of ISELCO II Offices

        * QUIRINO SUB-OFFICE

* SAN MANUEL COLLECTION 



44

44
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

INSTITUTIONAL

* STA. MARIA SUB-OFFICE

* MARANA SUB-OFFICE

* GAMU SUB-OFFICE

* COMMAND CENTER

4.2 Construction of new Office Buildings
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INSTITUTIONAL INSTITUTIONAL

4.3 Service and Maintenance Vehicles

5. Affiliations and Partnerships

6. Participation to Nationwide Campaigns/Programs
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B. MEMBER SERVICES DIVISION

      

BAPA
DEC

1. Cabagan July 2, 1979 26 26 100 10,162 8,744 86.05% 10,162 12,136 19 12,155 119.61%
2. Delfin Albano May 8, 1980 29 29 100 6,637 5,836 87.93% 6,637 8,023 8,023 120.88%
3. City of Ilagan Dec 1, 1978 91 91 100 34,669 34,012 98.10% 34,669 38,489 38,489 111.02%
4. Palanan June 20,1993 17 6 35 3,826 963 25.17% 3,826 963 963 25.17%
5. San Pablo July 2, 1979 17 17 100 5,134 4,665 90.86% 5,134 6,419 6,419 125.03%
6. Santa Maria Sept. 9, 1979 20 20 100 4,860 4,546 93.54% 4,860 4,936 4,936 101.56%
7. Santo Tomas May 20, 1982 27 27 100 4,980 4,781 96.00% 4,980 5,249 5,249 105.40%
8. Tumauini Oct. 28, 1981 46 46 100 15,541 13,523 87.01% 15,541 18,424 16 18,440 118.65%

Second District
9. Aurora June 24, 1982 33 33 100 8,476 9,503 112.12% 8,476 8,409 8,409 99.21%
10. Benito Soliven Feb. 5, 1982 29 29 100 6,941 4,884 70.36% 6,941 7,999 1 8,000 115.26%
11. Burgos Dec. 12, 1982 14 14 100 5,744 5,323 92.67% 5,744 3,929 3,929 68.40%
12.Gamu Sept. 28, 1980 16 16 100 6,791 5,902 86.91% 6,791 6,465 6,465 95.20%
13. Mallig Sept.11, 1981 18 18 100 7,591 6,685 88.06% 7,591 6,380 6,380 84.05%
14. Naguilian June 11, 1980 25 25 100 7,413 6,595 88.97% 7,413 7,399 1 7,400 99.82%
15. Quezon Aug. 15, 1982 13 13 100 5,874 5,396 91.86% 5,874 5,723 5 5,728 97.51%
16. Quirino March 6, 1982 21 21 100 6,333 4,964 78.38% 6,333 7,102 1 7,103 112.16%
17. Roxas Sept. 11, 1980 26 26 100 14,226 16,064 112.92% 14,226 17,456 17,456 122.70%
18. San Manuel June 20, 1982 19 19 100 7,613 7,342 96.44% 7,613 8,737 8,737 114.76%
19. San Mariano Feb. 5, 1982 36 36 100 12,220 9,060 74.14% 12,220 19,169 8 19,177 156.93%

TOTAL 523 512 98% 175,031 158,788 90.72% 175,031 193,407 51 193,458 110.53%

* Census 2015 Note: Municipality of Dinapigue is now under the franchise area of AURELCO.
   Solar System

ELECTRIFICATION STATUS PER MUNICIPALITY
as of DECEMBER 2020

BARANGAYS MEMBERSHIP
%%ACTUALPOTENTIALMUNICIPALITIES INDIVIDUAL

HOUSE CONNECTION
DATE POTENTIAL

First District
POTENTIAL ACTUAL ACTUAL %

1.  ELECTRIFICATION STATUS

INSTITUTIONAL



47

47
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

2. INFORMATION AND EDUCATION CAMPAIGN (IEC)

Activity 2019 2020
Barangay Assembly Meeting 75 6
Consumer Orientation/ Pre - Membership 
Seminar (Every Friday) 282 296
Liga ng mga Barangay 12 16
School Symposium 21 3
Sangguniang Bayan Meeting 2 2
Electrician's Meeting Quarterly Quarterly
Senior Citizen's Meeting 15 4
Newsletter 3 2
Website Monthly Monthly
Flyer 3 1
Public Address System 473 969
Facebook Page Weekly Weekly
Radio Programs Monthly Monthly
Local News Publication Monthly Monthly
BAPA Officers Meeting 4 4
BAPA Meeting 70 9

* CENTRALIZED PRE-MEMBERSHIP PROGRAM

* SANGGUNIANG BAYAN MEETING AT CITY OF ILAGAN

INSTITUTIONAL
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* PUBLIC ADDRESS SYSTEM

* TARPAULINS IN BRANCH OFFICES & SUB-OFFICES

* DISTRIBUTION OF FYLERS

* RADIO PROGRAM

* LEGISLATIVE INQUIRY
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INSTITUTIONAL

a. Sitio Lullutan, Carauitan,Maldam, Malaya, Brgy. Binatug, San Mariano, Isabela

b. Sitio Sisim, Brgy. Minagbag,
              Quezon, Isabela 

c. Sitio Tungui, Ibujan, Nursery, 
         San Mariano,Isabela

2019 % 2020 %
Complaints Received 13,844 14,351

Complaints Acted 13,251 14,10995.72% 98.31%

2019 2020
Barangay Power Association 190 190
Number of BAPA Organized 190 190
Number of BAPA Operational 138 138
Number of BAPA Take - over 52 52

3. CONSUMER COMPLAINTS

4. SPECIAL PROJECTS

* SITIO ELECTRIFICATION PROGRAM

INSTITUTIONAL
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5. CONSUMER AFFAIRS

* ANNUAL GENERAL MEMBERSHIP ASSEMBLY 2019

* MEMBER CONSUMER OWNERS PROGRAM FOR 
         EMPOWERMENT SEMINAR (MCOPE)

* PANTAWID LIWANAG PROGRAM
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I am pleased to provide the financial statements of the Isabela II 
  Electric Cooperative for the year ended December 31, 2020.

  
       The report comprises the following:

1. Statement of Financial Position
2. Statement of Comprehensive Income

3. Statement of Changes in Equity
4. Statement of Cash Flows

5. Notes to Financial Statements

          
     MICHAEL B. PAGUIRIGAN

BOARD TREASURER
Report of
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FINANCIAL

52



53

53
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Members of
ISABELA  II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
Alibagu, Ilagan, Isabela

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ISABELA II ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE which comprise the statement of financial position as at 
December 31, 2020, and 2019 and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the years 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of ISABELA II ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows foe the years then ended in accordance with 
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing 
(PSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Cooperative in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as 
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management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Cooperative’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Cooperative or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Cooperative’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Cooperative’s internal control.      
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concerns basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Cooperative’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Cooperative to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue 
Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the 
basic financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information 
on taxes, duties and license fees in Note 28 to the financial statements is 
presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is 
not required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management. The information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In 
our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements taken as whole.

DELIO I. SAMULDE & ASSOCIATES, CPAs
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DELIO I. SAMULDE
Managing Partner
CPA Cert. No. 107411
PTR No. 8554233MJ issued at Makati City on 1/19/2021
TIN 223-837-688 (Individual)
TIN 243-774-610 (Partnership)
BOA Accreditation No. 2446 valid  until February 3, 2023
BIR Accreditation No. 07-000144-02-2019 valid until March 19, 2022
NEA Accreditation No. 2016-06-0035 valid until June 28, 2022

February 19, 2021
Makati City
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Members of
ISABELA  II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
Alibagu, Ilagan, Isabela

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of ISABELA II ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE which comprise the statements of financial condition as at 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the statements od financial operations, 
statements of changes in members’ equity and statements of cash flows 
for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in 
all material respects, the financial position of ISABELA II ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVE as at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with 
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) applicable for Cooperatives.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing 
(PSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Cooperative in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as  
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management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for 
assessing the Cooperative’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Cooperative or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so..

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the 
Cooperative’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Cooperative’s internal control.     
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions 
that may cast significant doubt on the Cooperative’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Cooperative to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.

Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue 
Regulations 15-2010

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on 
taxes, duties and license fees in notes to the financial statements is presented 
for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not required 
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as whole.

HECTOR U. SANTOS JR., CPA
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HECTOR U. SANTOS JR.
Managing Partner
CPA Cert. No. 111669
PTR No. MKT8564956 issued at Makati City on January 25, 2021
TIN 239-935-475-000 (Individual)
BOA Accreditation No. 5368 valid until March 5, 2022
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005788-001-2020 valid until February 26, 2023
CDA Accreditation No. 975 May 15, 2018 valid until May 14, 2021

February 19, 2021
Makati City
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ISABELA II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 2019

Notes 2020 2019

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS  
Property, plant and equipment 2, 5 P 804,865,070        P 789,636,808        
Construction works in progress 2, 6 299,281,748        255,638,546        
Other non-current assets 2, 7 223,662,391        190,829,038        
 1,327,809,208     1,236,104,392     

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 2, 8 118,738,385        105,495,089        
Trade and other receivables 2, 9 601,779,058        546,302,166        
Inventories 2,10 92,837,073          92,033,911          
Other current assets 2,11 67,855,799          63,881,926          

881,210,315        807,713,092        
TOTAL ASSETS P 2,209,019,523     P 2,043,817,484     

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Members' contributions 2,12 P 3,047,356            P 2,916,394            
Share capital 13 161,713,155        146,124,674        
Donated capital 2,14 360,571,976        363,178,693        
Miscellaneous contributed capital 15 906,646,184        816,653,182        
General reserve fund (123,105,605)       (170,402,654)       
Cooperative education & training fund-local 2,092,722            1,954,697            
Optional fund 2,908,368            2,715,133            
Community and development fund 1,246,443            1,163,627            
  1,315,120,597     1,164,303,746     

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Long-term borrowings 2,17 63,941,975          85,537,172          
Consumers deposits 18 61,959,088          67,589,066          

125,901,063        153,126,238        

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 2,19 730,120,194        691,131,454        
Current portion on long-term borrowings 17 6,456,221            5,904,973            
Cooperative education & training fund-Federation 2,092,722            1,954,697            
Interest on share capital payable 20 15,125,774          13,773,127          
Patronage refund payable 20 14,202,952          13,623,247          
 P 767,997,863        P 726,387,499        
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,209,019,523     2,043,817,484     

See notes to the financial statements
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ISABELA II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019  

 Notes 2020 2019

REVENUE 2, 21 P 2,329,345,938     P 2,386,872,216     

COST OF SERVICE 22 (1,945,962,286)    (2,034,077,321)    

GROSS PROFIT 383,383,652        352,794,896        

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE 2, 23 44,299,929          34,907,610          

DISTRIBUTION COST 2, 24 (191,734,899)       (176,766,913)       

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2, 25 (191,285,078)       (191,048,479)       

OPERATING INCOME 44,663,604          19,887,114          

NON-OPERATING REVENUE 2, 23 28,180,999          40,315,756          

DEPRECIATION EXPENSE (40,123,019)         (38,097,002)         

INTEREST EXPENSE (4,849,800)           (2,004,608)           

NON-OPERATING EXPENSES 2, 26 (25,111,281)         (19,914,694)         

PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE YEAR P 2,760,502            P 186,566               

See notes to the financial statements

DISTRIBUTION OF NET SURPLUS
Reserve Fund 10% 276,050               18,657                 
Education and Training Fund - Local 5% 138,025               9,328                   
Education and Training Fund - Federation 5% 138,025               9,328                   
Community Development Fund 3% 82,815                 5,597                   
Optional Fund 7% 193,235               13,060                 
Interest on Share Capital 49% 1,352,646            91,417                 
Patronage Refund 21% 579,706               39,179                 
Total 100% 2,760,502            186,566               
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ISABELA II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

   
Notes 2020 2019

  
MEMBERS CONTRIBUTION
Balance beginning of the year 2,916,394            2,767,984            
Addition during the year 130,962               148,410               
Balance end of the year 2, 12 P 3,047,356            P 2,916,394            

SHARE CAPITAL
Issued and paid 146,124,674        138,154,459        
Addition during the year 15,588,481          7,970,215            
Balance end of the year 2, 13 161,713,155        146,124,674        

DONATED CAPITAL
Balance beginning of the year 363,178,693        369,531,449        
Adjustments during the year (2,606,717)           (6,352,756)           
Balance end of the year 2, 14 360,571,976        363,178,693        

MISCELLANEOUS CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Balance beginning of the year 816,653,182        731,545,044        
Additional provision during the year 89,993,002          85,108,137          
Balance end of the year 15 906,646,184        816,653,182        

CUMMULATIVE EARNINGS
Balance beginning of the year (170,402,654)       (143,376,131)       
Correction of prior years errors 16 47,020,999          (27,045,180)         
Share on profit (loss) for the year 276,050               18,657                 
Balance end of the year (123,105,605)       (170,402,654)       

COOPERATIVE EDUCATION & TRAINING FUND - LOCAL
Balance beginning of the year 1,954,697            1,945,368            
Share on profit (loss) for the year 138,025               9,328                   
Balance end of the year 2,092,722            1,954,697            

OPTIONAL FUND
Balance beginning of the year 2,715,133            2,702,073            
Share on profit (loss) for the year 193,235               13,060                 
Balance end of the year 2,908,368            2,715,133            

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND
Balance beginning of the year 1,163,627            1,158,031            
Share on profit (loss) for the year 82,815                 5,596                   
Balance end of the year 1,246,443            1,163,627            
TOTAL EQUITY P 1,315,120,596     P 1,164,303,745     

See notes to the financial statements
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ISABELA II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020 2019

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) P 2,760,502            P 186,566               
Adjustments to reconcicle net income to net 
cash provided by operations
Depreciation 2, 5 40,123,019          38,097,002          
Uncollectible accounts 2, 9 25,063,747          13,092,655          
Correction of errors 47,020,999          (27,045,179)         
Decrease (Increase) In:   
Trade and other  receivables 2, 9 (80,540,638)         (64,643,623)         
Inventories 2,10 (803,161)              (7,581,795)           
Other current assets 2,11 (3,973,873)           (5,550,938)           
Increase (Decrease) In:   
Trade and other payables 2,19 38,988,740          74,159,751          
Current portion on long-term debts 17 551,248               (5,594,462)           
Net cash provided by operating activities 69,190,582          15,119,976          

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (Increase) In:
Property, plant and equipment 2,5 (55,351,280)         (85,195,238)         
Construction work in progress 6 (43,643,202)         (62,541,876)         
Other non-current assets 2,7 (32,833,353)         (394,086)              
Net cash provided by investing activities (131,827,836)       (148,131,199)       

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) In:
Membership contributions 2,12 130,962               148,410               
Share capital 13 15,588,481          7,970,215            
Donated capital 14 (2,606,717)           (6,352,756)           
Miscellaneous contributed capital 15 89,993,002          85,108,137          
Long-term debts 2,17 (21,595,197)         14,517,351          
Consumers deposits 18 (5,629,978)           (124,950)              
Net cash provided by financing activities 75,880,552          101,266,408        
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 13,243,296          (31,744,815)         
CASH BALANCE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 105,495,089        137,239,903        
CASH BALANCE END OF THE YEAR P 118,738,385        P 105,495,089        

See notes to the financial statements
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ISABELA II  ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

1 General Information

2 Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

a) Accounting Policies Adopted

          PAS 1 (Revised 2003) - Presentation of Financial Statements
          PAS 2 - Inventories
          PAS 7 - Cash Flow Statements
          PAS 8 (Revised 2003) - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates, 

and Errors
          PAS 10 (Revised 2003) - Events After the Balance Sheet Date
          PAS 16 (Revised 2003) - Property, Plant and Equipment
          PAS 17 - Leases
          PAS 18 - Revenue
          PAS 20 - Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of

Government Assistance
          PAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The significant accounting policies and practices of the Cooperative are set forth to facilitate the understanding of the
financial statements:

The following accounting standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that have been published by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the FRSC which became effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2006 were adopted by the Cooperative to the extent applicable.

These new standards, amendments and interpretations prescribe new accounting measurement and disclosure
requirements applicable to the Cooperative. When applicable, the adoption of the new standards was made in
accordance with the transitional provisions of the standards, other the adoption of the new standards is accounted for as
change in accounting policy under PAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’”. The
effects of these new standard, amendments and interpretations on the company’s accounting policies on the amounts
disclosed in the financial statements are summarized as follows:

ISABELA II ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. , is rural electric cooperative, duly organized under existing Philippine
Laws and Regulations. It was incorporated and registered with the National Electrification Administration (NEA) on
February 25, 1978. Its franchise covers the northern portion of Isabela composed of Ilagan, Cabagan, San Pablo, Sta
Maria, Naguillian, Gamu, Roxas, Aurora, Manllig, Sto Tomas, Delfin Albano, Tumauini, Quezon, Quirino, San Manuel,
Burgos, Benito Soliven, San Mariano, Palanan, and the three municipalities in the eastern coast composed of
Maconacon, Divilacan and Dinapique which are benefited by Solar Home System. 

The Cooperative's  registered office address is at Alibagu, City of Ilagan, Isabela.

The financial statements of the Cooperative have been prepared on a fair value measurement. The financial statements
are presented in Philippine Pesos, which is the Cooperative's functional currency. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS).

On March 3, 2010, the cooperative got its new membership and registration with the Cooperative Development Authority
(CDA) under registration certificate number 9520-01008918. The cooperative is exempt from payment of income and
sales taxes, provided that the substantial portion of its net income is returned to its members in the forms of interest or
patronage refunds.

The Cooperative's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 were approved and authorized for issue 
by the Board of Directors on February 19, 2021.
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PAS 1 (Revised 2003), “Presentation of Financial Statements,” provides a framework within which an entity assesses
how to present fairly the effects of transactions and other events. It provides the criteria for classifying liabilities as
current or non-current, prohibits the presentation of items of income and expense as extraordinary items, specifies
disclosures about the judgments made by management in applying accounting policies, the key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the balance sheet date that have significant risks.
PAS 2 (Revised 2003), “Inventories,” clarifies the scope to exclude producers of agricultural and forest products,
agricultural produce after harvest, minerals and mineral products. The standards reduces the alternatives for the
measurement of inventories, prohibiting the use of Last-In, Last-Out (LIFO) formula. It requires disclosure of the
carrying amount of inventories carried at fair value less cost to sell and the amount of any write-downs to inventories
recognized as an expense in the period.

PAS 17, “Leases”, which prescribes, for lessees and lessor, the appropriate accounting policies and disclosure to apply
in relation to leases. 
PAS 18, “Revenue”, provides additional guidelines as to the timely recognition of revenue, which is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable. 
PAS 20, “Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance”, applies in accounting for, and
in the disclosure of government grants and in the disclosure of other forms of government assistance.
PAS 36 (Revised 2004), “Impairment of Assets”, prescribes the procedures that an entity applies to ensure that its
assets are carried at no more than their recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be recovered
through use or sale of the asset. If this is the case, the asset is described to be impaired and the standard requires the
entity to recognize an impairment loss. The standard also specifies when an entity should reverse an impairment loss
previously recognized. The revised standard clarifies the elements that should be reflected in the calculation of an
asset’s value in use.  PAS 36 prescribes the frequency of impairment testing for intangible assets.

PAS 37, "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets", ensures that appropriate recognition criteria and
measurement basis are applied to provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets and that sufficient information
is disclosed in the notes to financial statement to enable users to understand their nature, timing and amount.

PAS 7, “Cash Flow Statements,’ Information about the cash flows of an entity is useful in providing users of financial
statements with a basis to assess the ability of the entity to generate cash and cash equivalent and the needs of the
entity to utilize the cash flows. The economic decisions that are taken by users require an evaluation of the ability of an
entity to generate cash and cash equivalents and the timing and certainty of their generation.   
PAS 8 (Revised 2003), “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,” eliminates the concept of
fundamental error and the allowed alternative to retrospective application of voluntary changes in accounting policies
and retrospective restatement to correct prior period errors. The standard defines material omissions and
misstatements and describes how to apply the concept of materiality when applying accounting policies and correcting
errors.
PAS 10 (Revised 2003), “Events After the Balance Sheet Date,” clarifies that dividends declared after balance sheet
date are not to be recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date.
PAS 16 (Revised 2003), “Property, Plant and Equipment,” prescribes the accounting treatment for property, plant and
equipment and related disclosure requirements. The Standard contains a limited revision to provide additional
guidance and clarification on recognition and measurement of items of property, plant and equipment. It provides
guidance on initial and subsequent recognition as well as measurement after recognition. It requires depreciation for
each significant part of an item of property, plant and equipment. The standard also provides guidance on the
determination of the carrying amount of the assets, the residual value, depreciation period and derecognition principles
to be observed.  

The adoption of the above standards, amendments and interpretations, upon which the Cooperative has opted to adopt,
did not have any significant effect on the Cooperative's financial statements. These, however, require additional
disclosures on the Cooperative’s financial statements. 
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b) Accounting standards relevant to the cooperative but not yet adopted

          PFRS 1 - First-Time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
          PFRS 5 - Non-current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation
          PFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure
          PAS 16 - (Amendment): Property, Plant and Equipment
          PAS 19 - Employee Benefits
          PAS 23 - (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs
          PAS 32 - Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
          PAS 36 - Impairment of Assets
          PAS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
          PAS 40 - Investment Property

The above-mentioned standards are explained in summary as follows;

PAS 16, "Property, Plant and Equipment", provides additional guidance and clarification on recognition and
measurement of items of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the
item shall be depreciated separately.
PAS 19, "Employees Benefits", cover a much broader scope and categorizes employees benefits as follows: (a) short-
term employees benefits; (b) post-employment benefits; (c) other long-term benefits; (d) termination benefits; and (e)
equity compensation benefits; and only allows Projected Unit Credit Method to measure retirement obligations and
costs.
PAS 23, "Borrowing Costs", requires capitalization of borrowing costs if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities for use
are in progress and expenditures are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are ready for
intended use.

PAS 32, "Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation", aims to enhance financial statement users
understanding  of the significance of financial instrument to an entity's financial position, performance and cash flows.

PAS 36, "Impairment of Assets", which prescribe the procedures to an entity applies to ensure that its assets are
carried at no more than its recoverable amount; requires recognition of impairment losses and reversal of this; and
prescribe disclosures.

The following published standards mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on or after January 2005 but not yet
adopted by the Cooperative. Management determine that adoption of these standards will not have material effect on
its financial statements.

PFRS 1, "First-time Adoption of Philippines Financial Reporting Standards", applies when an entity adopts PFRS for
the first time, by explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with PFRS. In general, PFRS 1 requires an entity
adopting PFRS for the first time to comply with each PFRS that has come into effect at the reporting date for its PFRS
financial statements.

PFRS 5, "Non-Current Asset Held-for-Sale and Discontinued operation", requires an operation to be classified as
discontinued when the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale have been met or have disposed of operation.

PFRS 7, "Financial Instrument: Disclosure", requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that
enables users to evaluate the significance of financial statements for the entity's financial position and performance and
the nature and extent of risks arising from the financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and
at the reporting date, and how the entity manage those risks. 
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Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade and Other Receivables

Inventories

Input Tax

All financial assets are recognized on their trade date. All financial assets that are not classified as at fair value through
profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, plus transaction costs. Aside from cash, the Cooperative’s other
financial assets are currently classified as loans and receivables.

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid debt instruments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.

Trade and other receivables are stated at amortized cost less provision for impairment. Impairment is considered when
there is objective evidence that the Cooperative will not be able to collect the debts. The allowance for impairment loss
is the estimated amount of probable losses arising from non-collection based on past collection experience and
management review of the current status of the long-outstanding trade receivables. The Cooperative's policy in
providing allowance for doubtful accounts in accordance with NEA's policy: (1) 1% current to 90 days past due; (2) 2%
91 to 181 days past due (3) 3% 181 to 240 days past due; (4) 241 to 360 days past due; (5) 5% over one year past due;
(6) 100% fully unrealizable account.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Costs is calculated using the average cost method.
Net realizable value is the current replacements cost. 

Input tax represents value added tax (VAT) paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit against the Cooperative's
VAT liabilities.

PAS 40, "Investment Property", prescribe the accounting treatment for investment properties which are defined as land
and/or building healed to generate income or for capital appreciation or both. An investment property is initially
recognized at cost. Subsequently to initial recognition, an investment property is either carried at (i) cost, less
accumulated depreciation or any accumulated impairment losses, or (ii) fair value, wherein fair value movements are
recognized as income or expense.
As of December 31, 2020, the Cooperative opted not to adopt any of the  other new standards, amendment and 
interpretation.

The significant accounting policies and practices of the Cooperative are set forth to facilitate the understanding of the
financial statements:

Financial assets include cash and other financial instruments. Financial assets, are classified into the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. Financial assets are assigned to the different categories by management on initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. The designation of financial assets is
re-evaluated at every reporting date at which date a choice of classification or accounting treatment is available, subject
to compliance with specific provisions of applicable accounting standards. 
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Depreciation is computed on the  straight-line method, based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as 
follows:
Distribution Plant: No of years
Structures and improvements 45
Station equipment 33
Poles, towers and fixtures 20
Overhead conductors and devices 33
Line transformers 30
Services 33
Meters 25
Street lighting and signal system 33
General Plant:
Structures and improvements 45
Office furniture and equipment 10
Transportation equipment 4
Tools shop and garage equipment 10
Store equipment 10
Communication equipment 10
Laboratory equipment 10
Power operated equipment 10
Communication equipment 10
Miscellaneous equipment 10

Estimated future dismantlement costs of items of property, plant and equipment arising from legal or constructive
obligations are recognized as part of property, plant and equipment and are measured at present value at the time
when the obligation was incurred.

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet
determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Cooperative’s accounting policy.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost less any subsequent accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses. The initial cost of an asset consists of its purchase price and costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditures relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have already been recognized are
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Cooperative. All other subsequent expenditures
are recognized as expenses in the period in which those are incurred.
Major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and equipment when the Company expects to use
them during more than one period. Similarly, if the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection
with an item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such Revalued assets is credited to the properties revaluation
surplus, except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognized as an
expense, in which case the increase is credited to the income statement to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is charged as an expense
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the properties revaluation surplus relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.

Stand-by equipment is depreciated from the date it is made available for use over the shorter of the life of the stand-by
equipment or the life of the asset the stand-by equipment is part of while major spare parts are depreciated over the
period starting when it is brought into service, continuing over the lesser of its useful life and the remaining expected
useful life of the asset to which it relates. 
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Financial Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables

Interest on share capital

Patronage refund

Borrowings

Financial Assets and Liabilities

Interest on share capital represents liabilities of the cooperative to its members which can be determined only at the
end of every calendar year. Presently, interest on share capital is equivalent to 9% of the net surplus

Patronage refund represents liabilities of the cooperative to its members and patrons which can be determined only at
the end of every calendar year. Presently, interest on share capital is equivalent to 6% of the net surplus

The Cooperative recognized a financial asset or a financial liability in the balance sheets when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.  In the case of regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and 
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.  Financial instruments are classified as liabilities 
or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses
relating to a financial instrument of a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense or income.
Distribution to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to shareholders equity, net of
any related income tax benefits. Financial instruments are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and
intention to settle either on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Interest-bearing loans are raised for support of long-term funding of operations. They are initially recognized at
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. The amortized cost of a financial liability is the amount at which the
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount.
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to profit
or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Finance costs, are added to the carrying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise otherwise these are presented as part
of accrued interest under trade and other payables. 

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets and liabilities are included in the initial measurement of all financial assets and
liabilities, except for financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Borrowings are measured at their nominal values and subsequently recognized at amortized costs less settlement
payments, if any.

Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use. Construction works in progress were not depreciated until it is completed and put into operational
use.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued property, the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
properties revaluation reserve is transferred directly to accumulated profits.
Gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the income statement.          

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans, trade and other payables, cash bond deposits, income tax
payable and retirement benefit obligation are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
agreements of the instrument. All interest related charges are recognized as an expense in the consolidated income
statement under the caption Finance costs. 
Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated balance sheet only when the obligations are extinguished
either through discharge, cancellation or expiration.

Trade payables are recognized initially at their nominal value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less
settlement payments. 
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Impairment of Financial Assets

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis
of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Cooperative. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are
reviewed regularly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivable
carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial assets shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the statements of income. 

For loans and receivables, the Cooperative first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Cooperative determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for
groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

The Cooperative first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individual asset with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is on continues to be recognized are not
included in a collective assessment or impairment.

The Cooperative assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred "loss event") and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an
allowance account and the amount of loss is charged to the statement of operations. Receivables, together with the
associated allowance accounts, are written-off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral
has been realized. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, any amounts formerly charged are credited to the "Other
income" account.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of such credit risk
characteristics as industry, collateral type, past-due status and term.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assets Carried at Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity instruments has been occurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

• the Cooperative has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statements of income, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Where the Cooperative has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized
to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes
the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Company
may repurchased, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Cooperative’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

• the Cooperative retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through  arrangement; or

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognized may no longer
exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the
previously recognized impairment loss. 

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the statement of income.

An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting the market conditions less cost to
sell and value in use, based on an internal discounted cash flow evaluation. 

The Cooperative’s property, plant and equipment and investment properties are subject to impairment testing.
Individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level. 
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Equity

Deficit includes all current and prior period results as reported in the income statement.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Related Parties

Employee Benefits 
(a) Termination Benefits 

(b) Compensated Absences 

Cumulative Earnings
Cumulative earnings include all current and prior period results as disclosed in the statement of income.
Revenue and cost recognition 

Subsequent Events

Events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Cost and expenses are recognized in the income statement upon consumption of goods or utilization of the services or
at the date they are incurred. Finance costs are reported on an accrual basis and are recognized using the original
effective interest rate. 

The Cooperative identifies subsequent events as events that occurred after the balance sheet date but before the date
when the financial statements were authorized for issue. Any subsequent events that provide additional information
about the Cooperative’s financial position at the balance sheet date are reflected in the financial statements.

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including holiday entitlement) remaining at
the balance sheet date. They are included in Trade and other payables account in the consolidated balance sheets at
the undiscounted amount that the Cooperative  expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement. 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Cooperative and the
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for services provided in  the normal course of business. 
(a) Selling of services; 
(b) Interest – Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the assets). 
Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated income statement upon utilization of the services or at the date
they are incurred. Finance costs are reported on an accrual basis and are recognized using the original effective
interest rate. 

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized because their existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote.

Parties are considered related if one party has control, joint control, significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. The key management personnel of the Cooperative and post-employment benefit
plans for the benefit of Cooperative’s employees are also considered to be related parties. 

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Cooperative recognizes
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: (a) terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or (b) providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date are discounted to present value. 

Statutory Funds are mandatory funds established/set up in accordance with articles 86 and 87 of the Cooperative 
Code. They are as follows:
Reserve Fund amounts set aside annually for the stability of the cooperative, and to meet net losses in the operations. 
It is equivalent to at least 10% of the net surplus. A corresponding fund should be set-up either in the form of time 
deposit with local banks or government securities. Only the amount in excess of the paid up share capital may be used 
for the expansion and authorized investment of the cooperative as provided for in its by-laws. Presently, the 
cooperative provide 65% of its net surplus to cover the accumulated losses.

Education and Training Fund refers to amount retained by the cooperative out of the mandatory allocation as stipulated 
in the cooperative's by-laws. 
Community Development Fund refers to fund of the cooperative computed at 3% of cooperative's surplus. This is used 
for projects or activities that will benefit the community where the cooperative operates.
Optional Fund refers to fund set aside from the net surplus (should not exceed 10%) for future use such as land and 
building, community developments, etc.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Revaluation reserve on property pertains to appreciation in value of assets due to the revaluation at appraised values of
property, plant and equipment. 
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3 Management's Use of Estimates

Estimating useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Asset impairment

Revenue recognition

4 Financial Risk Management
Financial risk management objectives and policies

Liquidity risk

Interest  rate risk 

The Cooperative’s revenue is recognized upon distribution of power to consumers, net of portion allocated to capital
contribution for reinvestment, universal charge and FIT-ALL charges.

The Cooperative's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: foreign exchange risk, liquidity risk, interest risk.
The Cooperative’s overall risk management program seeks to specific risks are summarized below:

The Cooperative maintains adequate highly liquid assets in the form of cash and cash equivalents to assure necessary
liquidity.

The primary source of the Cooperative’s interest risk relates to loans debt instruments. The interest rates on these
assets and liabilities.

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are estimated based on the period over which the assets are
expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically
and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the Cooperative’s assets. In addition, the estimation of the useful
lives of property, plant and equipment is based on Cooperative's collective assessment of industry practice, internal
technical evaluation and experience with similar assets. It is possible, however, that future results of operations could
be materially affected by changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts
and timing of recorded expenses for any period would be affected by changes in these factors and circumstances. A
reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment would increase the recognized operating
expenses and decrease non-current assets.

The Cooperative is required to perform an impairment review when certain impairment indicators are present.
Purchase accounting requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgment to allocate the purchase price to
the fair market values of the assets and liabilities.

Determining the fair value of property, plant and equipment, investments and intangible assets, which require the
determination of future cash flows expected to be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such
assets, requires the Cooperative to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect the financial statements
. Future events could cause the Cooperative to conclude that property, plant and equipment, investments and
intangible assets associated with an acquired business is impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a
material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of operations.

The preparation of the estimated future cash flows involves significant judgment and estimations. While the Company
believes that its assumptions are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in the assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and may lead to future additional impairment charges under generally
accepted accounting principles in the Philippine.

The Cooperative has adopted the fair value approach in determining the carrying value of its investment properties.
While the Cooperative has opted to rely on independent appraisers to determine the fair value of its investment
properties, such fair value was determined based on recent prices of similar properties, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices. The amounts and
timing of recorded changes in fair value for any period would differ if the Cooperative made different judgments and
estimates or utilized different basis for determining fair value. 

In the application of the Cooperative’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not easily apparent from other source. The
estimates and associated assumption are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant.  Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in period of revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.  
The following represents a summary of the significant estimates and judgments and related impact and associated
risks in the Cooperative’s financial statements.
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5 Plant, Property and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Additions Returned December 31, 2020
Cost
Distribution Plant:  
Land and land rights 6,254,750        1,287,260      -                     7,542,010                
Structures and improvements 15,870,360      -                 (444,846)            15,425,513              
Station equipment 180,263,643    -                 -                     180,263,643            
Poles, towers and fixtures 274,285,412    11,606,515    -                     285,891,927            
Overhead conductors & devices 169,324,236    13,428,419    -                     182,752,655            
Line transformers 176,850,992    9,668,786      -                     186,519,778            
Services 18,437,187      -                 -                     18,437,187              
Meters 140,267,425    9,383,758      -                     149,651,183            
Leased property on cons premises 3,889,988        -                 -                     3,889,988                
Street lighting and signal system 676,576           -                 -                     676,576                   
Distribution Plant - SFP:
Poles, towers and fixtures - SEP 72,096,535      -                 -                     72,096,535              
Overhead cond & devices - SEP 52,018,328      -                 -                     52,018,328              
Line transformers - SEP 8,715,744        -                 -                     8,715,744                
General Plant:  
Land and land rights 751,670           -                 -                     751,670                   
Structures and improvements 30,591,851      3,670,659      -                     34,262,510              
Office furniture and equipment 49,773,178      9,940,805      -                     59,713,983              
Transportation equipment 109,818,846    435,492         -                     110,254,338            
Store equipment 4,896,548        -                 -                     4,896,548                
Tools, shop and garage equipment 10,058,268      581,222         -                     10,639,490              
Laboratory equipment 2,209,136        -                 -                     2,209,136                
Communication equipment 3,967,375        49,253           -                     4,016,627                
Miscellaneous equipment 9,596,578        -                 (1,856,041)         7,740,537                
Info system and related equipment 2,400,000        (2,400,000)         -                           
   Total 1,343,014,627 60,052,168    (4,700,887)         1,398,365,907         

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Distribution Plant:      
Structures and improvements 2,206,085        120,819         -                     2,326,904                
Station equipment 54,382,399      3,600,978      -                     57,983,377              
Poles, towers and fixtures 144,605,353    8,253,210      -                     152,858,563            
Overhead conductors & devices 53,893,705      2,269,045      -                     56,162,750              
Line transformers 80,441,206      10,235,450    -                     90,676,656              
Services 18,437,187      -                 -                     18,437,187              
Meters 66,497,393      5,370,288      -                     71,867,681              
Leased property on cons premises 3,889,988        -                 -                     3,889,988                
Street lighting and signal system 676,576           -                 -                     676,576                   
Distribution Plant - SFP:
Poles, towers and fixtures - SEP 10,336,710      2,184,743      -                     12,521,453              
Overhead cond & devices - SEP 12,995,712      1,573,221      -                     14,568,933              
Line transformers - SEP 1,103,342        239,333         -                     1,342,675                
General Plant:  
Structures and improvements 7,318,380        834,530         -                     8,152,910                
Office furniture and equipment 24,696,114      1,403,602      -                     26,099,716              
Transportation equipment 52,199,043      2,598,129      -                     54,797,172              
Store equipment 4,523,562        10,255           -                     4,533,816                
Tools, shop and garage equipment 5,158,688        388,184         -                     5,546,871                
Laboratory equipment 1,366,552        262,483         -                     1,629,035                
Communication equipment 3,826,445        4,695             -                     3,831,140                
Miscellaneous equipment 4,823,379        774,054         -                     5,597,433                
   Total 553,377,819    40,123,019    -                     593,500,838            

789,636,808    -                 -                     804,865,070            
  

The carrying values of the property, plant and equipment approximate their fair values.  

December 31, 2019
(Disposal)/Revaluation/
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6 Construction Works in Progress
This account consists of:  

Notes 2020 2019
Construction works in progress - contract P 180,630,873      P 166,824,043             
Construction works in progress - contract SFP 46,213,810        34,094,918               
Construction works in progress - force account 72,437,065        39,534,018               
Construction works in progress - special equipment -                     15,185,567               

P 299,281,748      P 255,638,546             

7 Other Non- Current Assets
This account consists of

Notes 2020 2019
Retirement work in progress P 51,763,189        P 51,763,189               
Other investments 79,412,638        58,617,560               
Franchise tax 7.1 624,611             624,611                    
Real property tax 7.1 14,575,978        14,575,978               
Business tax 7.1 20,975,871        20,975,871               
Other Deferred Debits 56,310,104        44,271,829               
Total P 223,662,391      P 190,829,038             
Note 7.1
This account represents franchise tax, real property tax and business tax  already paid  but temporarily charged to  
deferred account pending the approval of ERC for pass on.

8 Cash and Cash Equivalents  
This account consists of

Notes 2020 2019
Petty cash fund P 212,500             P 212,500                    
Cash on hand 82,876               82,876                      
Cash in bank 63,303,534        17,376,225               
Restricted funds Note 8.1 55,139,476        87,823,488               
Total P 118,738,385      P 105,495,089             

Note 8.1 Restricted funds consists of:
Membership P 3,007,506          P 3,007,506                 
NEA subsidy 12,612,219        24,484,257               
Reinvestment fund 50,137               974                           
Employees benefits 5,067,717          10,216,804               
Retirement fund 1,471,061          20,555,544               
Share capital 15,533,948        12,161,515               
Capital share - dividends 16,231,033        16,231,033               
Employees cash bond 1,165,855          1,165,855                 

P 55,139,476        P 87,823,488               

9 Trade and Other Receivables
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Consumer accounts receivable-energy P 545,299,506      P 485,111,571             
Allowance for uncollectible accounts (25,063,747)       (13,092,655)              
Consumer accounts receivable-energy-net 520,235,759      472,018,916             
Other accounts receivable 81,543,298        74,283,250               
Total P 601,779,058      P 546,302,166             

10 Inventories  
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Electrical  materials P 80,837,899        P 87,777,030               
Special equipment 7,287,420          -                            
Office supplies 4,177,897          3,723,024                 
Store expense undistributed 126,287             126,287                    
Housewiring materials 20,744               20,744                      
Others  386,826              386,826                    
Total  92,837,073         92,033,911               
Less: allowance to reduce materials and supplies to net realizable value -                     -                            

P 92,837,073        P 92,033,911               

Construction works in progress represents distribution lines, sub-station, under construction. This includes cost of
materials, labor and other overhead. Construction works in progress were not depreciated until it is completed and put
into operational use.

FINANCIALFINANCIAL
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11 Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Prepayments - insurance P 604,532             P 423,574                   
Other prepayments 2,821,246          8,637,254                
Advances to officers and employees 4,218,140          3,622,514                
Input VAT 26,260,830        17,247,532              
Creditable tax 33,951,051        33,951,051              
Total P 67,855,799        P 63,881,926              

12 Members Contributions  

13 Share Capital

2020 2019
Authorized capital P 525,000,000      P 525,000,000            
Issued shares
Subscribed shares -                    -                           
Paid-up share 161,713,155      146,124,674            
Total issued and paid P 161,713,155      P 146,124,674            

14 Donated Capital
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Loan condonation P 133,308,318      P 133,308,318            
Subsidy 110,212,721      111,039,749            
Subsidy - SFP 117,050,938      118,830,626            
Total P 360,571,976      P 363,178,693            

15 Miscellaneous Contributed Capital

2020 2019
Contribution in aid of construction P 209,540,531      P 209,540,531            
CAPEX 664,983,989      574,990,987            
CAPEX Recovery 32,121,664        32,121,664              
Total P 906,646,184      P 816,653,182            

16 Correction of prior years errors

This account represents membership fee of each consumer to the electric cooperative equivalent to P20 per
consumer. Total member consumers of the cooperative as of December 31, 2020, reached 168,001 and this already
amounted to P3,047,356 while P3,021,014 in 2019.

Loan condonation as shown above represents the outstanding loan balance of the Cooperative with the National
Electrification Administration (NEA) as of June 26, 2001 assumed by Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management
Corporation (PSALM) pursuant to Republic Act. No. 9136, otherwise known as "Electric Power Industry Reform Act of
2001."

This account represents provision for reinvestment equivalent to P0.3676 per KWH sold to finance system expansion,
rehabilitation/upgrading of existing electric system, add-ons, and institution development as approved and authorized
by the Energy Regulatory Commission (ERC) as follows:

5,250,000 shares at P100 per shares

In 2020, the Cooperative's prior operations was restated in the current year to effect the following adjustments on 
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses amounting to P47,020,999. Significant adjustment was due to provision of 
allowance for doubtful accounts P924,230 and adjustment of overstatement/understatement of accumulated 
depreciation amounting to P27,955,002.

This account represents capital paid by cooperative's member' consumers amounting to minimum of P1,200 per
member as a result of the cooperative registration with the Cooperative Development Authority. The breakdown of
share capital are as follows:

FINANCIAL
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17 Long-term Borrowings
This account consists of:

2020 2019

NEA Calamity Loan (Typhoon Lawin) 10 years to pay, 32,915,061        36,330,984              
3.25% interest rate, payable in 41 quarterly amortization
starting June 2019.

NEA Calamity Loan (Typhoon Harurot) -                    25,769,956              

Bank Loan (Capital Share) 4 years to pay, 12% int rate -                    8,716,205                
payable in 38 monthly amortization starting Mar 2016.

DBP Loan (Calamity Loan) 5 years to pay, 12% int rate 625,000             625,000                   
payable in 60 quarterly amortization starting Sept 2011.

REFC (Loan D) 6,227,155          -                           

REFC (Loan E) 5 years to pay, 6.00% interest rate 15,944,527        20,000,000              
payable in 60 monthly amortization starting May 2018.

REFC (Loan F) 14,686,453        -                           

Less: current portion (6,456,221)        (5,904,973)               

Balance P 63,941,975        P 85,537,172              
  

These loans were granted by REFC subsequent to October 2014 and are payable in quarterly amortization in 
varying amounts from four (4) years up to five (5)years with interest rate  ranging from 6% to 12% per annum. 

18 Consumers Deposits  
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Energy P 46,766               P 46,766                     
Meter 53,768,655        53,768,655              
Others 8,143,666          13,773,644              
Total P 61,959,088        P 67,589,066              

Energy deposits represents guarantee deposits made by consumers  for electric service bills.

service contract provided that the equipment is returned in good condition.

19 Trade and Other Payables   
This account consists of:

Notes 2020 2019
Accounts payable-power P 147,218,004      P 138,300,961            
Withholding tax payable 4,731,444          2,004,615                
Accounts payable-universal charges 213,472,225      213,667,410            
Accrued sick leave 5,338,071          2,098,505                
Accrued vacation leave 10,788,793        9,371,319                
Retirement 355,418             355,418                   
Others 192,696,005      169,978,151            
Output VAT  153,077,170      153,077,170            
Miscellaneous current & accrued liabilities 2,443,064          2,277,907                
Total P 730,120,194      P 691,131,454            

20 Interest on share capital and Patronage refund payable

E Revenue   
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Residential sales P 1,318,848,582   P 1,321,569,172         
Commercial sales 419,415,146      476,332,534            
Industrial sales 242,682,899      225,369,980            
Sales to public street and highway lighting 24,349,116        24,854,437              
Sales to public buildings and facilities 142,862,641      165,617,988            
Sales to communal water system 61,796,473        59,376,415              
Sales to BAPA 119,391,081      113,751,690            
Total P 2,329,345,938   P 2,386,872,216         

Meter deposits cover the cost of the metering equipment and are refundable upon termination of the electric 

These represent the amount allocated from net surplus equivalent to 70% as explicitly stated in the Cooperative's
articles of incorporation and by-laws. As of December 31, 2020, interest on share capital and patronage refund
payable already amounted to P29,328,726 and P27,396,374 in year 2019.

FINANCIALFINANCIAL
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22 Cost of Services   
This account consists of power purchased from different power suppliers and electric cooperatives:

2020 2019
Anda Power Corporation (APC) P 815,333,628      P 26,985,064              
National Grid Corporation of the Philippines (NGCP) 306,901,926      332,787,565            
San Miguel Energy Corporation (SMEC) 701,437,489      1,370,551,781         
Independent Electricity Market Operator of the Philippines (IEMOP) 98,487,468        303,752,910            
National Power Corporation (NPC) 4,353,776          -                           
Isabela I Electric Cooperative, Inc. (ISELCO I) 19,447,999        -                           
Total P 1,945,962,286   P 2,034,077,321         

23 Other Income
This account consists of

2020 2019
Forfeited discounts P 18,536,138        P 33,361,931              
Prompt payment discount 24,634,263        
Rent from electric property 278,105             277,482                   
Interest and dividend income 2,242,474          142,144                   
Metering charges 851,423             1,268,196                
Merchandising, Jobbing & contract work 10,981,969        11,611,623              
Miscellaneous operating income 10,942,748        22,210,055              
Income from government grant 3,997,297          5,939,241                
Miscellaneous non-operating revenues 16,511               412,693                   
Total P 72,480,928        P 75,223,365              

24 Distribution Cost  
This account consists of:

2020 2019
Operation     
Supervision and engineering P 7,785,451          P 8,334,318                
Overhead lines 22,094,197        25,733,698              
Meter expense 5,705,535          6,162,331                
Street lighting and signal system 1,291,023          2,078,562                
Maintenance
Supervision and engineering 2,733,169          4,280,485                
Station equipment 5,253,095          5,839,055                
Overhead lines 46,836,562        50,273,826              
Line transformers 6,248,085          4,424,439                
Meters 3,467,224          3,656,280                
Consumer account expenses  
Supervision 288,198             417,788                   
Meter reading expenses 22,515,976        22,305,103              
Consumers records and collection 37,550,103        35,653,944              
Uncollectible accounts 22,902,579        671,107                   
Informational and instructional advertising 3,796,822          2,949,650                
Consumer prompt payment discount 3,266,882          3,986,327                
Total Distribution cost P 191,734,899      P 176,766,913            

25 Administrative Expenses  
This account consists of:  

2020 2019
Administrative & general salaries P 41,429,335        P 40,354,007              
Office supplies 7,344,821          8,860,032                
Outside services employed 23,176,444        16,394,272              
Property insurance 111,018             260,339                   
Injuries and damages 4,206,566          3,426,769                
Employees pensions & benefits 79,705,079        72,622,351              
Rent 2,573,600          1,823,946                
Maintenance of general plant 11,118,602        11,172,496              
Taxes on property 292,948             132,007                   
Officers allowances and benefits 7,559,503          7,140,843                
Travel 7,472,504          20,614,870              
Trainings 2,249,116          3,761,880                
Interest 4,849,800          2,004,608                
Depreciation 40,123,019        38,097,002              
Miscellaneous general expenses 4,045,543          4,484,666                
Total Administrative expenses P 236,257,897      P 231,150,088            

The Independent Electricity Market Operator of the Philippines (IEMOP) took over Wholesale Electricity Spot Market’s 
(WESM) operations from Power Electricity Market Corporation (PEMC) last September 2018 in accordance with 
Electric Power Industry Reform Act (Epira) of 2001.
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26 Non-Operating Expenses
This account consists of

2020 2019
Cost of jobbing, merchandising & contract works P 4,835,381          P 5,976,680                 
Civic, social, and other related account 12,864,909        4,655,561                 
Taxes withheld 7,410,991          9,282,452                 
Total P 25,111,281        P 19,914,694               

27 Retirement Plan

28 Supplementary information required by Revenue Regulations  No. 15-2010

I. Withholding Taxes

Withholding taxes paid and accrued and/or withheld for the year ended December 31, 2020 consists of:
 Paid Accrued Total
Creditable withholding tax
Withholding tax on compensation - employees 6,598,725      210,689             6,809,414                 
Withholding tax on director's fee 368,965         26,985               395,950                    
Withholding tax on professional -                 -                     -                           
Rentals 59,632           8,652                 68,284                      
Contractors 1,265,982      833,254             2,099,236                 
Suppliers 88,632           6,321                 94,953                      
Expanded withholding tax 298,321         44,632               342,953                    
Total 8,680,257      1,130,533          9,810,790                 

Below is the additional information required by RR No. 15-2010. This information is presented for purposes of filing with 
the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) and is not required part of the basic financial statements.

In compliance with the Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010 which became effective on December 28, 2010 and
amended certain provisions of RR No. 21-2002 prescribing the manner of compliance with any documentary and/or
procedural requirements in connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements and income tax
returns. In Section 2 of RR No. 21-2002, it was further amended to include in the notes to financial statements
information on taxes, duties and license paid or accrued during the year in addition to what is mandated by Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards.

As of December 31, 2020, the equivalent cost based on actuarial valuation has not been determined.

The Cooperative recognizes the retirement benefits to its regular employees as mandated under R.A. No. 7641.

Under IAS 19, retirement benefit costs, pertains to the cost of defined retirement benefits. Such costs shall determined
using an accrued benefit valuation method or the projected benefit valuation method. Both method require actuarial
valuation which the Cooperative has not yet undertaken.
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2019 vs 2020 System Loss

Series1

Series2

COMPARATIVE SYSTEM LOSS DATA

MONTH 2019 2020

January 10.65% 12.50%

February 9.28% 7.25%

March 10.55% 12.86%

April 15.89% 13.92%

May 10.59% 14.83%

June 12.21% 15.87%

July 10.56% 14.72%

August 11.59% 8.21%

September 11.32% 12.10%

October 12.40% 8.28%

November 6.91% 10.17%

December 5.46% 7.04%

Total 10.85%

2019 ENERGY PURCHASED & ENERGY SALES

MONTH
Energy Purchased -           

NGCP (kWhr)
Energy Sales 

(kWhr)
Coop Used (kWhr) Total Sales (kWhr)

System Loss 
(kWhr)

Sytem Loss (%) Palanan (kWhr)

January 19,520,318.00                         17,064,531                62,376                       17,126,907                  2,446,443             12.50% 53,032                       

February 17,754,272.00                         16,475,373                39,085                       16,514,458                  1,291,558             7.25% 51,744                       

March 20,936,490.00                         18,245,209                46,672                       18,291,881                  2,698,649             12.86% 54,040                       

April 24,717,709.00                         21,270,260                61,013                       21,331,273                  3,449,576             13.92% 63,140                       

May 26,016,216.00                         22,150,113                71,692                       22,221,805                  3,870,347             14.83% 75,936                       

June 27,689,747.00                         23,295,379                72,905                       23,368,284                  4,407,591             15.87% 86,128                       

July 25,976,383.00                         22,151,872                77,012                       22,228,884                  3,836,511             14.72% 89,012                       

August 24,878,188.00                         22,838,954                77,483                       22,916,437                  2,050,651             8.21% 88,900                       

September 26,969,897.00                         23,715,765                73,725                       23,789,490                  3,275,551             12.10% 95,144                       

October 22,781,923.00                         20,889,143                73,393                       20,962,536                  1,891,823             8.28% 72,436                       

November 20,409,901.00                         18,304,740                69,724                       18,374,464                  2,081,161             10.17% 45,724                       

December 18,396,184.00                         17,103,473                60,879                       17,164,352                  1,299,552             7.04% 67,720                       

Total/Average 276,047,228                             243,504,812.2          785,959                    244,290,771               32,599,413           842,956                    
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TOTAL KILOMETERS OF LINE (ACCUMULATED)

Double Circuit 4.36 6.36

LINES (kms) 2019 2020

Three Phase 344.67 362.23

Two Phase 55.84 56.684

Single Phase 1122.23 1134.51

Underbuilt 495.38 501.24

Open Secondary 661.70 691.81

TOTAL CKT. KMS 2,684.18                                      2,752.82                       
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NO. OF POLES USED (UPGRADING/REHAB)

65 ft        - 0

45 ft        - 26

40 ft        - 101

35 ft        - 167

30 ft        - 84

25 ft        - 309

NO. OF INSTALLED TRANSFORMER

10 kVA     - 5

15 kVA     - 7

25 kVA     - 49

37.5 kVA  - 27

50 kVA     - 40

75 kVA     - 8

R-O-W CLEARING (NO. OF SPAN CLEARED)

Three Phase           - 500

Vee Phase                - 336

Single Phase           - 700

Open Secondary - 1200

METERING REPORT SUMMARY

I. New Connection

Residential/Commercial           - 9,411                           

Primary Metering                          - 7                                    

Secondary Metering                  - 81                                  

II. Change KWH Meter                                                - 4,703                           

III. Calibrated/Tested KWH Meter                        - 15,000                        
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TECHNICAL TECHNICAL
A. LINE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION & MAINTENANCE DIVISION

      1. LINE UPGRADING
*  CONSTRUCTION OF 3PH DOUBLE CIRCUIT ALONG 
   TUMUINI-DELFIN ALBANO (SEPARATE FEEDER) 

* CONSTRUCTION OF 3PH DOUBLE CIRCUIT FOR 
   CABAGAN STO. TOMAS FOR SYSTEM RELIABILITY

* CONSTRUCTION OF SECONDARY LINE AT 
   SONGSONG, GAMU
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TECHNICAL TECHNICAL

      2. RELOCATION OF LINES
* LINE REHABILITATION & RELOCATION OF POLES DUE TO DPWH ROAD        
  WIDENING FROM VILLANUEVA TO BABANUANG HIGHWAY, SAN MANUEL

* LINE REHABILITATION OF BACKBONE LINE AT ALINGUIGAN 3RD,   
   ILAGAN FOR SYSTEM RELIABILITY

* RELOCATION OF POLE DUE TO ROAD CONCRETING AT SITIO BIGAO,  
   MINANGA, SAN MARIANO
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TECHNICAL
      3. RIGHT OF WAY CLEARING

* SAN IGNACIO CITY OF ILAGAN

* SAN ANTONIO CITY OF ILAGAN

* BENITO SOLIVEN - SAN MARIANO FOREST REGIONS

* SAN ANTONIO DELFIN ALBANO
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TECHNICAL TECHNICAL
B. ENGINEERING SERVICES DIVISION

      1. SUBSTATION
* THE OVERALL DEVELOPMENT (COMMISSIONING AND TESTING) 
OF NEW EQUIPMENT AT CABAGAN SUBSTATION WAS SUCCESSFULLY 
ENERGIZED

* INSPECTION OF CONNECTION OF PROTECTIVE RELAY
   AND DISMANTLING OF OLD GANTRY AND EQUIPMENT

* PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE OF TUMAUINI SUBSTATION
   AND TESTING OF PROTECTION RELAY AND VACUUM CIRCUIT BREAKER 
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TECHNICAL

a.  POWER TRANSFORMER THERMAL AND ULTRA SOUND SCANNING  

a. MEASURING OF SECONDARY CURRENT USING CLAMP AMMETER
    AND THERMOGRAPHIC INSPECTION

2. METERING SECTION

3. PLANNING AND DESIGN SECTION

*KWHR-METER CALIBRATION, MINIMIZE ANY MEASUREMENT 
UNCERTAINTY BY ENSURING THE ACCURACY OF TEST EQUIPMENT. 
IT QUANTIFIES AND CONTROLS ERRORS OR UNCERTAINTIES WITHIN 
MEASUREMENT PROCESSES TO AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL.

* TRANSFORMER LOAD MANAGEMENT  MEASUREMENT PROCESSES TO 
AN ACCEPTABLE LEVEL.

*THERMAL SCANNING UTILIZES A MODERN NON-CONTRACT THERMAL 
IMAGING CAMERA TO DETECT HIGHER THAN NORMAL    TEMPERATURES    
  WITHIN ELECTRICAL COMPONENTS.
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TECHNICAL TECHNICAL

4. LINE INSPECTION/STAKING OF BARANGAY RESOLUTIONS/REQUESTS

* SITIO ENERGIZATION PROGRAM  (SEP) SITE INSPECTION/STAKING

a. SITIO SINGAP, DITABUNI, CAMARAG, DALAYAP OF 
    SAN MARIANO, ISABELA

b. SITIO RIZALISTA, RANG-AYAN, CITY OF ILAGAN, ISABELA 

c. SITIO DIMADIGUE, IBUJAN, SAN MARIANO, ISABELA 
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d. SITIO VILLA BELONG, STA. CRUZ, SAN MANUEL, ISABELA 

TECHNICAL

e. SITIO TAPWAKAN, RANG-AYAN, CITY OF ILAGAN



TECHNICAL

CORPORATE PLANNING
91
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CORPLAN CORPLAN

Installation of Dctech Integrated System at City of Ilagan, Isabela
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CORPORATE PLANNING

2019 LOYALTY AWARDEES
35 Years

30 Years

BALLESTEROS, LEONARDA 

PAVON, REYNOLD 

VALENZUELA, DANA MAMAUAG, MIGUEL 

CASTRO, GILBERT 

MEDRANO, LIBORIO 

SACCUAN, OLYMPIO 

TULIAO, SERVILLANO 

ABARRA, NELIE .

PAGUIRIGAN, EDUARDO
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2019 LOYALTY AWARDEES

ESTEBAN, HEGINO 

ALMONTE, JIMMY 

CABASAL, MARIO JOSE 

MEDRANO, REYNALDO 

TORRES, JOHN 

LOZANO, CARLOS SR 

CAMIDCHOL, RONNIE 

MAGDAY, GEMMA 

VALERA, HERMAN 

BUCATAN, RODOLFO 

DE BIEN, JENNIFER CORPUZ, CAROL 

20 Years

CAMPANO, WILSER 
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2020 LOYALTY AWARDEES
35 Years

20 Years

GLORIA, REGALADO 

SIMPLINA, ANGELO BUDUAN, WAYNE  

BAUTISTA, BERNALDBERT  GARCIA, VLADIMIR 
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Barangay Power Association
(BAPA) Awardees for the Year 2019 and 2020

DISTRICT III 
1. STA. CRUZ
2. PISANG
3. MANANAO
4. EDEN

DISTRICT V   
1. ESTRADA
2. SAN JUAN
3. TUROD
4. VINTAR  
5. SANTIAGO
6. STA. CATALINA
7. SITIO PADUT
8. SITIO DABBAC
9. MANAOAG

DISTRICT VI
1. ANNANUMAN
2. FLAVIANO
3. LIMBAUAN
4. ANTAGAN
5. BUENAVISTA
6. NAGANACAN
7. PACULAGU
8. VILLA BUENA 1 & 2
9. VILLA BUENA 3

DISTRICT VII 
1. BIGA OCCIDENTAL
2. BIGA ORIENTAL
3. SAN RAFAEL ABAJO
4. MALAPAGAY
5. CAPITOL
6. ANEG
7. CONCEPTION
8. VILLA PEREDA

San Manuel, Isabela
San Manuel, Isabela
San Manuel, Isabela
San Manuel, Isabela

Quezon, Isabela
Quezon, Isabela
Quezon, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela
Quirino, Isabela

San Pablo, Isabela
San Pablo, Isabela 
San Pablo, Isabela
San Pablo, Isabela
Sta. Maria, Isabela
Sta. Maria, Isabela
Sta. Maria, Isabela
Sta. Maria, Isabela
Sta. Maria, Isabela

Sto. Tomas, Isabela
Sto. Tomas, Isabela
Sto. Tomas, Isabela
Sto. Tomas, Isabela
Delfin Albano, Isabela
Delfin Albano, Isabela
Delfin Albano, Isabela
Delfin Albano, Isabela
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Barangay Power Association
(BAPA) Awardees for the Year 2019 and 2020

Cabagan, Isabela
Cabagan, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela
Tumauini, Isabela

Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
Benito, Soliven, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela
San Mariano, Isabela

DISTRICT VIII 
1. MASIPI WEST
2. SITIO GUINGAG
3. TUNGI (2019)
4. SISIM ALTO
5. SAN VICENTE
6. MOLDERO
7. ANGUAPAN
8. CUMABAO
9. CAMASI
10. CALIGAYAN
11. PALLACOT
12. SAN ROQUE
13. MANARE
14. SITIO BACQUI
15. BAYABO
16. DIVISORIA

DISTRICT IX 
1. PLACER
2. DAGUPAN
3. CAPUCERAN
4. BINUGTUNGAN
5. SINIPIT
6. ARA
7. GUILINGAN
8. CADSALAN
9. UEG
10. DARAGUTAN EAST
11. SAN PEDRO
12. LIBERTAD
13. SAN JOSE
14. DISULAP
15. OLD SAN MARIANO
16. BALAGAN
17. GANGALAN
18. SITIO UDIAO
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Board of Directors

Dir. MICHAEL B. 
PAGUIRIGAN

Treasurer

Dir. EDWIN O. 
WAYAGWAG

Member

Dist. I - Ilagan

Dist. V - Mallig, 
Quirino, & Quezon

Dir. CARLITO M. 
UY

Vice Chairman

Dir. SILVINO P. 
CAMMAYO (+)

Member

Dist. II - Gamu & Burgos

Dist. III - Aurora & 
San Manuel

Dir. JULITO C. 
UY

Member

Dir. ALBERTO A. 
CASTAÑEDA

Member

Dist. VII - Sto. Tomas & 
Delfin Albano

Dist. VI - Sta. Maria & 
San Pablo

Dir. GAUDENCIO A. 
REYES 

Secretary

DIR. FELICIDAD N. 
MEDIOS 
Member

Dir. WALFRIDO G.
BINAG

Chairman

DAVID SOLOMON M. 
SIQUIAN

General Manager & Ex-Officio

Dist. IX - Naguilian, Benito
Soliven, & San Mariano

Dist. IV - Roxas

Dist. VIII - 
Tumauini & Cabagan
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Committee on Election

Committee on Audit 
and Inventory

RODOLFO B. 
AÑES

Chairman

RUSTICO A. 
MANUEL
Chairman

MARIANO R.
DAYAG, JR. 

Vice Chairman

GAUDENCIO J. 
RODRIGUEZ (+)

Vice Chairman

ANTONIA M. 
BAGUNU
Secretary

EDUARDO G. 
DAIT

Secretary



101

101
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

DAVID SOLOMON M. SIQUIAN 
LIBORIO P. MEDRANO
PINKY ANN C. LUCAS
ENGR. JOSEPH S. PALATTAO
ZENAIDA M. PAGUIRIGAN
CHARLES ROY B. OLINARES

BENALDBERT M. BAUTISTA 
BERNARD S. BAGUNU
MA. LUISA Z. DEMETRIA
JAMES M. MINA
JOCELYN E. PALADAN
AGNES C. PALCE
SHERYL DATUL
JENNIFER M. DE BIEN
ANDREA BLANCA A. BAGGAO
APRIL R. CUBANGBANG
ENGR. HAROLD C. DAVID
ENGR. JOEL F. AGONOY
ENGR. HERBERT C. SAVELLANO
ENGR. GENARO P. LUCAS, JR.

General Manager 
Manager, Finance Services Department
Manager, Institutional Services Department  
Manager, Technical Services Department
Internal Auditor
Manager, Corporate Planning Department

Manager, Aurora Branch
Manager, Cabagan Branch
Manager, Ilagan Branch
Manager, Naguilian Branch
Manager, Roxas Branch
Manager, Tumauini Branch
Chief, Accounting Division Chief
Chief, Consumers Accounts Control Division 
Chief, Administrative Division
Chief, Member Services Division 
Chief, Line Construction, Operation & Maintenance Division
Chief, Engineering Services Division 
Chief, Energy Trading Services Division
Chief, Wholesale Electricity Spot Market Division

Management and Staff
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ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Office of the General Manager

Internal Audit

Corporate Planning Department
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ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Finance Services Department

Institutional Services Department
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ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Technical Services Department
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Aurora Branch Office

ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Cabagan Branch Office
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ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Ilagan Branch Office
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Naguilian Branch Office

ISELCO II WORKFORCE



108

108
ISELCO II Annual Report 2020

ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Roxas Branch Office
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ISELCO II WORKFORCE

Tumauini Branch Office
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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MINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMAMINUTES OF THE PROCEEDING OF THE  36th AGMA
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1

4

7

5

6

2
3

1. The white inner portion represents a bulb which identifies the nature of 
the business.

2. The yellow and blue vertical lines represent the Congressional Districts 
1 and 2 which the ISELCO II franchise area covers.

3. The 9 lightning figures represent the 9 districts served by the cooperative.

4. 1978 is the year ISELCO II was founded.

5. The acronym ISELCO II reflects the name of Isabela II Electric 
Cooperative, the institution this logo stands for.

6. The blue semi-circular figure denotes unity, oneness and cooperation.

7.         figure denotes power-on indicating the coop’s commitment to 
continue its mandate of service reliability and quality power.

ISELCO II LOGO
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Bilang isang Pilipino
Ako ay naniniwala sa Kooperatiba.

Subalit kung kasama ang iba, 
ako ay magiging malakas

Kung kaya’t ako’y nangangako
na ako ay gagawa para sa Kooperatiba.

Upang ang lahat ay masagana, 
at may pagkakasundo.

Kasipagan,aking pahahalagahan,
tungkulin, aking gagampanan

Ang mga Pilosopiya ng Kooperatiba, 
aking isasabuhay

Isang pananaw, isang paniniwala, 
isang damdamin.

Sa Kooperatibismo, 
aking buhay ay ilalaan. 

Nawa’y tulungan ako ng
Poong Maykapal.

PANUNUMPA
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I.
Heto na ang liwanag dala ay ligaya’t sigla

Lakas ng enerhiya nagbibigay buhay sa paggawa
Kuryente’y pagyamanin ating paigtingin

Nang buhay natin ay giginhawa

II.
Ang ISELCO II nandito sa inyo ay handang magsilbi
Sa abot ng aming kaya at may ngiti sa aming labi

Handog nami’y tapat at de-kalidad
Na serbisyong inyong minimithi

KORO:
ISELCO II Halina! Tayo’y magsama-sama

Kapit-bisig nating palakasin ang kooperatiba
Kuryente’y pangalagaan wastong paggamit ay tandaan

Upang kaginhawahan ay ating makamtan

III.
Kooperatibismo’y isulong at pagyamanin

Industriya ng kuryente ay lalong paunlarin
Kuntentong mamamayan ay isaalang-alang

Sa Diyos at bayan ang adhikain

(ULITIN ANG KORO NG DALAWANG BESES)

ISELCO II MARCH
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Annual General Membership Assembly 
Working Committees

Over All Chairman

Committee on Program, Invitation
Information Dissemination, Audio Visual
Presentation

Committee on Logistics

Committee on Registration

Committee on Documentation

Committee on Physical Arrangement

PINKY ANN C. LUCAS

APRIL R. CUBANGBANG
Chairman

ANDREA BLANCA A. BAGGAO
Co-Chairman

GENEVIEVE L. UY
MARY CLAIRE N. VALENICA
Members

CHARLES ROY B. OLINARES
Chairman

JAN MIKHAIL M. VEHEMENTE
Co-Chairman

JAY CABASAL
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JAN REY CAMONAYAN
Members
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Chairman
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Co-Chairman

GEMA CABANTAC
Member
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Chairman
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Co-Chairman

SHARON BAUA
Chairman

APRIL JOY MATEO
Co-Chairman
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Member
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Annual General Membership Assembly 
Working Committees

Committee on BAPA Awards

Committee on Foods and Drinks

Committee on Raffle Draw

Committee on Budget

Committee on Power Reliability

Virtual Masters of Ceremony

EDUARDO PAGUIRIGAN
Chairman

ROLANDO AGGABAO
Co-Chairman

VICENTE FUTAD
Member

JENNIFER DE BIEN
Chairman

SHERYL DATUL
Co-Chairman

LILAC GOZUM
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CAROL BERNABE
Chairman

JAN MIKHAIL M. VEHEMENTE
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CHESTER UY
MA. DONAFER RAMIREZ
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PRINCESS CLAIRE SALDIVAR
Chairman
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AUSTIN GAGNO
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MARY CLAIRE N. VALENCIA
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